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SECTION A | GENERAL INFORMATION

ABOUT NIHSS
1. OUR MANDATE
Our mandate at the National Institute
for the Humanities and Social Sciences
(NIHSS) is to develop and set up the
institutional and logistical framework
for the envisioned higher education

education. The Higher Education Act

strengthening the system is the principle

(No. 101 of 1997) and the Education

of institutional differentiation, which has

White Paper 3: A Programme for the

long been recognised in policy but has

Transformation of Higher Education

not always been supported through

formed the basis for the transformation

funding. There is specific focus on

of the higher education sector, with

addressing another major problem

implementation being guided by the

area identified: that of inadequate

National Plan for Higher Education

and insufficient levels of research and

(2001) and the 2014 White Paper for

innovation.

Post-School Education and Training.

depends both on innovation and on

Economic

development

technology absorption, and solving

science (HSS).

Skills Development Act, 1998 (No.
97 of 1998)

Our role is, broadly, to enhance and

This Act provides for an institutional

support the HSS in South Africa and

framework to devise and implement

beyond; to advise government and

national,

civil society on HSS-related matters;

strategies to develop and improve the

to advocate equity, justice and social

skills of the South African workforce,

responsibility; and to increase and

to integrate these strategies within the

guide academic and public discourse

National Skills Framework, to provide for

about the crucial social issues that face

learnerships that lead to the recognition

Government’s NDP offers a long-term

us as citizens, in order to help influence

of

perspective

institution for the humanities and social

sector

occupational

and

workplace

qualifications

and

social and economic problems calls for
high-level research and development.
The Institute aims to play a significant
role in providing support for high-level
research, development and innovation.

National Development Plan (NDP)
2030

on

eliminating

poverty

the character of the South African

to provide for the financing of skills

and reducing inequality by 2030, by

community and to create a more

development by means of a skills

growing an inclusive economy, building

humane, responsible and just society in

development levy and the National

capabilities, enhancing the capacity of

South Africa as well as the rest of Africa.

Skills Fund (NSF).

the state, and promoting leadership

The NIHSS, which was established on

Post-schooling Education and
Training

05 December 2013 with the publication
of Government Gazette No. 37118, is
a juristic entity, in accordance with the
scope or application as contemplated in
Regulations 2 and 3.
Specific legislation that enables and
directs our mandate includes the
Higher Education Act (1997), the Skills
Development Act (1998), government
policy on post-school education and
training, and government’s National
Development Plan 2030.

Higher Education Act, 1997 (No.
101 of 1997)

The

White

Paper

for

Post-School

Education and Training (2014) provides
and clearly articulates a vision for a
single,

coherent

and

differentiated

post-school education and training

and partnerships throughout society.
While the achievement of the NDP
objectives requires progress on a broad
front, three priorities stand out:
•

economic growth;
•

facing our society by expanding access
to education and training opportunities
and increasing equity, as well as
achieving high levels of excellence and
innovation.

Improving the quality of education,
skills development and innovation;

system. This system will contribute to
overcoming the structural challenges

Raising employment through faster

and
•

Building the capability of the state
to

play

a

developmental

transformative role.
Our mandate positions the NIHSS to
contribute significantly to the NDP going

In terms of quality, the universities

forward.

are the strongest and most stable
This Act provides for a unified and

component

nationally planned system of higher

education and training system. Key to
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and

of

the

post-school
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WHO WE ARE

•

Advancing research, teaching and
learning by ensuring collaboration
and/or coordination of the work of

The NIHSS is a statutory
body that aims to contribute
significantly to ensuring the
excellence, integrity and
dynamism of the humanities
and social sciences not only
in South Africa but also
in Africa, through its core
functions of enhancing and
coordinating scholarship,
research and ethical practice
in the HSS fields.

higher education institutions;
•

Advising the Minister of Higher
Education and Training on matters
relating to the Institute’s strategic
objectives, or to higher education
generally; and

•

Advocating equity, justice and social
responsibility.

The NIHSS was honoured to take on
the responsibility of hosting the South
African BRICS Think Tank. In February
2015, the Minister of Higher Education
and Training, Dr Bonginkosi Nzimande
gave the Institute the function to
permanently host the South African

OUR VISION

BRICS Think Tank (SABTT).

the epicentre of scholarship, pedagogy,
community

practice

and

social

now been expanded to include:
•

Fostering

international

collaborations

responsibility for the humanities and

between

research
South

the global South, including Brazil,

but also in Africa.

Russia, India and China;
•

Acting as a dynamic broker between
the worlds of knowledge and policy

OUR MISSION

action on behalf of South Africa and
the South African BRICS Think Tank;

Our mission at the NIHSS is to redress
existing deficits and to coordinate
programmes, projects, collaborations
and activities in the HSS disciplines

and
•

Coordinating

and

managing

all

BRICS Think Tank related activities
on behalf of South Africa.

We will fulfil this mission – alone and/or
in partnership with our stakeholders – by:
•

Providing strategic and intellectual
resources to the higher education
sphere within the humanities and
social sciences;

6

Programme (CRP), cooperation and
networking are seen as a priority to
create communities of scholarship.

II. The principle of norm-driven
internationalisation
We live in a world that is more
interrelated and entangled than ever
before. Academics travel, students
are on the move, ideas circulate and
international epistemic communities
get stronger at the expense of their
national equivalents. There are very
not placed internationalisation as
one of their strategic goals. We are
driven

internationalisation

strengthens

Africa-wide,

that
South–

South collaborations in dialogue
with our “Northern” counterparts.

III. The principle of social
responsibility and equity
We have to be socially responsive
to the socio-economic problems
that face South Africa and its
citizens today. This is in recognition
of the forms of scholarship in the
humanities and how these relate
and connect to the lived experiences

within and through existing and future
public universities.

Schools and the Catalytic Research

advocating a focused and norm-

Africa, Africa and countries of

social sciences, not only in South Africa

In the establishment of Doctoral

few universities of note that have

As such the mission of the Institute has
Our vision at the NIHSS is to become

I. The principle of cooperation
and the establishment of
communities of scholarship

OUR VALUE
STATEMENT AND
GUIDING PRINCIPLES

of the majority in the country as
well as on the continent. It is an
intellectual project premised not
on mere critique but also seeking
to reconstruct grand narratives and
possibilities for change.

We have adopted the following five
values and principles to guide our work
and conduct in fulfilling the mission and
mandate of the NIHSS:
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IV. The principle of functional
differentiation as opposed to
resource differentiation

INTEGRITY
Doing what we say we will do.

•

Speaking the truth and being fair
in how we judge others. Displaying
openness and honesty.

system needs a differentiation not
but rather based on a differentiation

2016/2017 financial year.

•

Our higher education and research
on the basis of resource inequality

be filled during the first half of the

of visions, focus and priorities.

•

Demonstrating a “can-do” attitude.

We need to be flexible enough to

•

Encouraging

be

generous

enough

to

allow

Continually seeking better or new

The key point is simply a diversity

RESPECT

of visions that should be expressed

•

within any well-functioning system.

V. The principle of Transformative
Relevance

recognising

ways of doing things.

competition between priorities and
visions but still be able to cooperate.

and

innovation and creativity.
•

Demonstrating confidence in the
Treating all colleagues and others in
the way we expect them to treat us.
Not discriminating against others.

up new areas of research, which
have in turn a multiplier effect on

2. ORGANISATIONAL
STRUCTURE

curriculum in the HSS.

OUR INTERNAL VALUES

•

Placing the needs of our stakeholders
above our individual needs.

•

Achieving maximum value from
shared resources, knowledge and
expertise.

•

Participating and contributing in a
flexible supportive manner.

EXCELLENCE
•

Setting high standards in whatever
we do.

•

Aiming to do the best in everything
we do.

•

Delivering quality work.
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the National Mentorship Programme

Academic Directorate: Research
- responsible for Catalytic Research
Projects, Humanities Hubs, Working
Groups for Academic Collaboration and
Professional Associations.

- responsible for the BRICS Collaborative
Research Programme, African Pathways
Mobility Grants Programme and South
BRICS

Think

Tank

(SABTT)

activities/initiatives.

OUR
ORGANISATIONAL
STRUCTURE

Operational portfolio
Finance
- financial support services, supply chain

The organisational structure of the NIHSS

TEAMWORK

African Pathways Doctoral Schools and

African

future research projects and serious
transformative implications for the

- responsible for Doctoral Scholarships,

Academic Directorate: BRICS

Any Catalytic Research Project or
Working Group initiative has to open

Academic Directorate:
Scholarships

(NMP).

abilities of others.
•

portfolios exists in the NIHSS:

Academic portfolio

CREATIVITY

allow for pluralism and diversity,

The following academic and operational

as at 31 March 2016 was approved by
the NIHSS Board on 27 February 2015.
Minor

revisions

were

subsequently

made to reporting lines and job titles,
and additions were made in order to
attract people with the required skills
set at the right levels, to ensure that the
NIHSS can deliver on its mandate.
In the period under review, the staff
complement of the NIHSS increased
substantially – from 14 to 24. The
Academic

Director

for

the

BRICS

portfolio was also appointed. The
remaining positions are expected to

management and procurement.

Administration
- monitoring and evaluation, reporting,
grants management and knowledge
management services.

Human Resources
- human resource management.

Communication and Marketing
- communication, marketing, branding
and Information technology (IT) services.

Corporate Services
-

facilities

management

and

support services.
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legal

Figure 1: The NIHSS’ organisational structure as at 31 March 2016:

Executive Office
CEO

Executive
Office

Academic
Director

Admin
Director

Finance
CFO

Strategy &
planning

Doctoral
Schools
Programme

HR

Finance
support and
admin

Corporate
governance

African
Pathways
Programme
(APP)

Information
management

SCM

Monitoring
&
evaluation

Catalytic
Research
Programme
(CRP)

Communication &
Marketing

Humanities
Hubs

Legal services

Working
Groups
Programme

National
Mentorship
Programme
(NMP)

BRICS SABTT
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3. CHAIRPERSON’S FOREWORD
“There is remarkable work happening in
the country which could revolutionise the
curriculum but it is occurring in and on the
margins of the system, despite ambitious
vision documents.”
Prof. Ari Sitas, Chairperson

It is a pleasure to write the preface to the
2015/16 report. The Institute is by now
a functioning entity and it is beginning
to get down to achieving its vision and
its objectives. For anyone paging this
report it is easy to see how a remarkably
talented team, that fulfils all possible
transformation criteria, can make what
was deemed intangible, tangible.
Admittedly, it was not and it is not easy,
rolling out an ambitious academic
programme whilst at the same
time creating the fiscal, managerial,
bureaucratic and the institutional props
for such a rolling out process.
The Institute is achieving its objectives
in a turbulent climate in which the
University system itself is in discord and
polarisation. The challenges by student
movements on Free or Affordable
Education, on “Insourcing” and for an
appropriate post-Apartheid curriculum
have been deeply felt. The Institute
cannot operate with its head in the sand,
after all, these were some of the key
issues that the Charter for the Future of
the Humanities and the Social Sciences
was seeking to address in its effort to
invigorate thinking and scholarship in
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the country five years ago.
There is remarkable work happening in
the country which could revolutionise
the curriculum but it is occurring in and
on the margins of the system, despite
ambitious vision documents. Such
research in the distant and recent past,
on present ambiguities and failures and
on future alternatives demands depth,
time and determination. It would be a
serious challenge to try now to drag the
margin into the centre of academic life:
do we have the scholarly capacity, the
textual and digital support the networks
and organisational props to do so?

Awards that the Institute initiated: not
only were the panels remarkable sites of
discussion and reflection, but the quality
and extent of submissions was humbling.
What seems to have won the day was
the daring to be critical and contrary as
most winners disturbed the pattern of
our imaginary post-Apartheid rainbows:
congratulations then to Jacob Dlamini,
Imraan Coovadia, the University of
Johannesburg team of Peter Alexander,
Claire Ceruti, Keke Motseke, Mosa Phadi
and Kim Wale, Joanne Hitchens, Sazi
Dlamini and the Insurrections Ensemble,
Nirma Madoo-Chipps, Jay Pather, Shirley
Walters and Astrid Von Kotze.

On this we are not alone: our partners
in CODESRIA or in the University system
on this continent are helping us search
for a viable post-structural adjustment
landscape. Furthermore, the BRICS
University system, involving at least
60 institutions in its domain will begin
its own pathways as we also get into
far reaching bi-lateral agreements for
joint-research projects with India, Brazil,
Russia and China.

I am pleased to see that at the moment
the Institute is supporting substantive
and creative work in 19 of our 25 Higher
Education institutions. It will not be long
before the entire University system will
become a vigorous home for humanities
and social science research.

What was particularly pleasing was
the process around the first round of

Prof. Ari Sitas
Chairperson: NIHSS Board
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4. CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S REPORT
“Our overall performance this financial
year signals encouraging progress: from a
fledgling entity, to an Institute well on its
way to strengthening South Africa’s HSS as
the epicentre of knowledge production.”
Dr Sarah Mosoetsa, CEO

For numerous reasons, one cannot

work towards. Education must be at the

review took on a new responsibility, of

help but define the year under review

centre of such a transformation.

coordinating and managing all BRICS

as something of a watershed. Our work

Think Tank-related activities on behalf

in the higher education landscape

It is against this backdrop that I locate the

of South Africa. The NIHSS is the proud

changed forever with the “Fees must

work and contribution of the National

custodian of the South African BRICS

fall” and “Rhodes must fall” movements,

Institute for the Humanities and Social

Think Tank.

and there were many developments

Sciences – work that we are pursuing in

and disruptions on the international

response to our mandate (since 2013)

front too – including in India and

with ever-increasing urgency.

THE HUMANITIES AND SOCIAL
SCIENCES FIND A HOME

BUILDING A NEW AND
EXCITING HUMANITIES AND
SOCIAL SCIENCES IN SOUTH
AFRICA AND BEYOND!

The plaque unveiled by Dr Blade
Bonginkosi Nzimande, Minister of
Higher Education and Training at
the official NIHSS Office Launch on
30 March 2016

individual and collective consciousness.

Our overall performance this financial

Part of this exercise could be around

year signals encouraging progress: from

The NIHSS Inaugural Book, Creative and

the review, deconstruction – and even

a fledgling entity, to an Institute well on

reconstruction – of our priorities and

its way to strengthening South Africa’s

values as a nation. As I write this, it is

HSS as the epicentre of knowledge

evident to me that, as South Africans,

production. Although much remains

we need to embrace a common vision.

to be done, I am not only pleased with

Dialogue and interventions promoting

our progress to date, but excited by the

not just a sense of moral regeneration,

sheer scope of opportunities that our

but helping to build such a vision, need to

mandate represents for our country, for

be prioritised. Economic transformation

the continent at large, and for focusing

of our society remains the biggest

and driving the Global South–South

challenge, and one that we all need to

agenda. The Institute in the year under

Brazil, with whom the Institute works in
partnership.
These tumultuous times offer us the
opportunity to reflect on, interrogate
and

seriously
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explore

both

our

Digital Awards held on 30 March 2016
were also used as a platform to officially
launch the NIHSS office premises,
with a select stakeholder base as
guests present to celebrate these
two important milestones. The event
doubled as a platform for introducing
the new home of the Institute when our
principal, Dr Blade Nzimande, Minister
of

Higher

Education

and

Training

(DHET), officially opened the permanent
NIHSS home to our greater stakeholder

SECTION A | GENERAL INFORMATION

community.

The Institute had been

productive relationship with universities

and to the NIHSS Board for entrusting

subletting office space from the Centre

increased from 14 to 19 institutions

me with such a huge responsibility. I feel

for

participating

honoured to lead the Institute, whose

Education

Policy

Development

(CEPD) at nominal rates in Empire Road,
Parktown.

in

the

academic

mandate is extremely close to my heart!

programmes.

On 21 November 2015,

I extend a special thank you to NIHSS

NIHSS moved to its own office premises

The concept of regionally based virtual

staff for all the great work done and

at 24 St Andrews Road in Parktown.

doctoral schools established cross-

tangible results achieved to date.

BUILDING A NEW AND
EXCITING HUMANITIES AND
SOCIAL SCIENCES IN SOUTH
AFRICA AND BEYOND!

institutional collaboration in a tangible
way – a step in the right direction in

Finally, a heartfelt thank you to the

breaking the status quo and moving

Chairperson of the Board, Prof. Ari Sitas,

towards greater inter-institutional and

and to Dr John Pampallis (Acting Chair

interdisciplinary collaboration.

during Prof Sitas’ sabbatical) for their
never-failing and strategic counsel.

We certainly closed our financial year on

The National Mentorship Programme

a high as we executed our responsibility

was

for being the voice that lauds pre-

initiative

important

I look forward to another year of

higher

affirming and strengthening South

eminent contributions in the form of

throughput rates and acting as a

Africa’s humanities and social sciences

humanities and social science scholarly

strong capacity-building mechanism.

as

works. We launched the first humanities

We expect to deploy the full contingent

production, and of accelerating the

and social sciences awards in South

of mentors in the next financial year.

considerable momentum that we have

Africa: the NIHSS 2016 Inaugural Annual

The quality of mentorship seen thus far

already built up.

Book, Creative and Digital Collections

is high, and the fact that our doctoral

Awards. The awards ceremony was

workshop brought together 80% of the

a historical milestone for the HSS

students and mentors in a single room

community.

is a worthy achievement in itself.

CELEBRATING OUR
ACHIEVEMENTS

established
for

as

an

facilitating

OPERATIONAL PERFORMANCE
SUCCESSES
As indicated, we successfully relocated
from the temporary location offered by

The following highlights bear testimony
to the efforts of the NIHSS since
inception.

the CEPD to our new and permanent
office premises. Thank you to the CEPD
team for their openness and kindness
in hosting us.

255 scholarships awarded –
Doctoral Schools Programme in
partnership with SAHUDA

During this period, we also developed

the

epicentre

of

knowledge

Dr Sarah Mosoetsa
CEO

255
Number of Doctoral
Scholarships
Awarded

a solid financial management system,
while successfully implementing key

During

review,

internal controls. In addition, critical

doctoral scholarship was advanced

the

period

under

skills were sourced, serving to improve

with the addition of 137 doctoral

our capabilities and ensure effective

students funded by our Academic

strategic and operational outputs.

Scholarship

Programme.

Quarterly

reports from NSFAS confirmed that
76% of our students were paid within

IN CONCLUSION

three months. To date the programme

Thank you to Minister of Higher

has 255 students. Our established and

Education and Training Dr Nzimande

Annual Report 2015 / 2016
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Number of HSS
Achievement
Awards
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IN MEMORIAM:
PROFESSOR SAM MOYO (1954-2015)

NIHSS BOARD MEMBER, CHAMPION OF THE HUMANITIES,
A SCHOLARLY GIANT AND PILLAR OF THE ACADEMIC STRENGTH

This reporting period was marked by a profound sense of

In memory of Prof. Moyo, we “take up the baton” from where

sadness and loss, as we were dealt a sudden blow with the

he left off and boldly forge ahead to ensure that his is a lasting

untimely death of our special comrade and friend, Professor

legacy. The NIHSS pleased to announce the POSTDOCTORAL

Sam Moyo. We had come a long way with Prof. Moyo, as he

FELLOWSHIPS IN LAND AND AGRARIAN REFORM. The fellow-

had served as a steering committee member during the Insti-

ship will advance the development of scholars and scholar-

tute’s early days, when it was still a Ministerial Special Project

ship in the area of land and agrarian reform in South Africa

conceptualising the future of the humanities in South Africa

and on the continent by addressing gaps in land and agrarian

and indeed for the diaspora. A passionate champion of the

scholarship while complementing teaching capacity on land

humanities, Prof. Moyo shared his vision and was a pillar of

and agrarian subject areas. The scholarship will support full-

academic strength. It is a great privilege and honour to have

time research in the following broad areas: agrarian and land

known such an inspiring soul and to have shared time in his

reform; rural livelihoods; food security and poverty reduction;

enlightening company. Prof. Moyo, we know yours will be a

and the contribution of land and agrarian reform policies and

lasting legacy.

programmes towards rural transformation and the reduction
of poverty in Africa.

12
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5. SOURCES OF
FUNDING

Figure 2: NIHSS revenue (2013-2016)
R90 000 000

R83 335 876

R80 000 000

The NIHSS receives its
operations budget directly
from the Department of
Higher Education and
Training (DHET). These funds
are administered through
our fund-holder, Deloitte
Consulting.

R70 000 000
R60 000 000
R50 000 000
R40 000 000

R38 915 383

R30 000 000
R20 000 000
R10 000 000
R0

2013 - 2015

2015 - 2016

We receive designated funds from
the National Skills Fund (NSF) for the

Note: The NIHSS was established on 5 December 2013. The financial period 2013 – 2015

Doctoral Schools and Scholarships

is over a 16-month period from 5th December 2013 to 31st March 2015.

Programme, which the NIHSS runs in
collaboration with the South African
Humanities

Deans’

Association

(SAHUDA). The scholarship funds are
transferred directly from the NSF to
the National Student Financial Aid
Scheme (NSFAS), which administers
these student funds on behalf of the
NIHSS.

OUR SERVICE DELIVERY
ENVIRONMENT
The NIHSS operates within an

All NIHSS programmes – which include
the Doctoral Schools Programme,
National

Mentorship

Programme

(NMP), Catalytic Research Programme
(CRP),

6. OPERATING
CONTEXT

Humanities

Hubs,

Working

Groups for Academic Collaboration
and the South African BRICS Think

environment marked by the following:
•

sciences;
•
•

development, health, energy, rural
development, and education and

holder, Deloitte Consulting, which

training;
•

mentorship and guidance from

a 114.1% increase year on year
(from the 2013–2015 period to the
2015/2016 financial year).

A student movement devoid of

A number of serious socioeconomic challenges facing South
Africa and her citizens in a postapartheid era.

Over the next five years, both our
service delivery and our operating
environment will be affected by the
following external factors:
•

Increase in the number of students
requiring postgraduate funding;

•

Limited supervision capacity,
especially in historically black

A subdued academic voice around
issues such as economic and social

Funds are transferred to the fund-

the Institute. Income/revenue shows

A humanities and social sciences
with a weakened role post-1994;

Tank activities – are funded by NSF.

administers the funds on behalf of

A neglected humanities and social

•

universities; and
•

Limited resources for scholarships
and research for the humanities
and social sciences, therefore
placing more demand for resources
on the Institute.

academics;
•

The absence of a large and
relatively coherent social movement
striving to attain a common goal;
and

Annual Report 2015 / 2016
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1. PERFORMANCE
AND
ADMINISTRATION

In our endeavour to achieve these

virtual doctoral schools established

overarching long-term strategic goals of

cross-institutional collaboration in

the NIHSS, the Institute has established

a tangible way – a step in the right

seven strategic programmes:

direction in breaking the status quo
of resource allocation and moving

•

Doctoral Schools Programme;

•

African Pathways Programme (APP);

•

Catalytic Research Programme (CRP);

•

Humanities Hubs;

In our Strategic Plan for 2015–2020, we

•

Working

for the NIHSS:

•

1. Provide doctoral scholarships for

•

postgraduate students studying in
the humanities and social sciences
in South Africa.

The concept of regionally based

strategic objectives as well as the

STRATEGIC OBJECTIVES
AND PERFORMANCE FOR
2015/16
have identified six strategic objectives

•

Groups

towards greater interinstitutional
and interdisciplinary collaboration.
•

The

National

Programme
for

is

Mentorship
important

for

facilitating higher throughput rates,

Academic

Collaboration;

which in turn facilitates improving

National Mentorship Programme

funding to the universities. The

(NMP); and

programme is a strong capacity-

BRICS Programme.

building

mechanism.

The

full

contingent of mentors will be

OVERVIEW OF
PERFORMANCE

deployed in the next financial year.
The quality of mentorship seen
thus far is high and the fact that

2. Dynamise the fields of research

During the reporting period, the NIHSS

our doctoral workshop brought

and teaching in the humanities

focused on the six strategic objectives

together 80% of students and

and social sciences in South Africa

and

mentors in a single room is an

through a range of Catalytic Projects

programmes.

and Humanities Hubs.

seven

strategic

achievement in itself.
•

Key highlights

3. Promote the integrity, reputation
and recognition of the humanities
education community, the science
society.
4. Advance postgraduate scholarship
collaborative supervision of doctoral

and the inaugural NIHSS Awards

Postgraduate

scholarship

was

the quality of a new breed of judges

advanced with the addition of

(voices) and award nominee shaping

137 doctoral students funded by

the HSS.

our programme. Quarterly reports

and technology community and

through a range of innovations and

The public launch of the NIHSS
profiled the Institute and showcased

•

and social sciences within the higher

•

•

The Liliesleaf colloquium played its

from NSFAS confirmed that 76% of

part in dynamising the fields of

the students were paid within three

HSS research through a gathering

months. Today, the programme has

of role players for a dialogue on

255 students!

research areas neglected in HSS.

The

working

relationship

with

SAHUDA as the key partner for

students.

the doctoral programme improved

5. Build and strengthen networks and
partnerships

with

organisations

significantly.
•

working in areas related to the

international

research

collaborations between South Africa
and the rest of Africa, and countries
of the Global South, including Brazil,
India and China.
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Our established and productive
relationship with universities
increased from 14 to 19 institutions

humanities and social sciences.
6. Foster

implemented

participating

in

the

academic

programmes.
•

The 93% scholarship uptake of
African
Pathways
students
confirmed

the

need

for

the

programme and the integrity of our
internal processes.
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1.

Objective

March 2020

the humanities and

1.2
Number of doctoral
118

186

3

Actual

137

6

2015/16

%

-49

3

-26.34%

100%

Variance Variance

requirements of NMP

doctoral schools given

up the total six virtual

were expanded on setting

Target exceeded. Efforts

met

why the target was not

1.3

accepted and disbursed.

69 scholarships were

were awarded, but only

total of 74 scholarships

2015/2016, a combined

doctoral programme

There were delays

the 2014/2015 and

-13.51%

of funds to NIHSS. In

-5

the African Pathways

32

awarded through

37

in the disbursement

37

from NSF to NSFAS
scholarships

Number of

and SAHUDA. Delays in

awarded

the disbursement of funds

process by universities

scholarships

Delay in recruitment

allocation was used.

footprint. The same budget

scholarships by

students studying in

New
indicator

Target
2015/16

sciences

and award 1050

postgraduate

schools established

Number of doctoral

1.1

Actual
2014/15

– which has a national

doctoral schools

indicator

Key performance
No

Explanations/Reasons

social

To create 6

scholarships for

statement

Provide doctoral

Strategic objective

Table 2: Performance Overview

STRATEGIC PROGRAMMES INTERVENTIONS
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3.

2.

13

1

8.3%

and positively reviewed.

proposals were received

number of quality project

Target exceeded. High

social sciences in

South Africa

social

sciences within the

3.3

3.2
HSS award/s

Number of individual

New
indicator

5

4

3

8

7

2

4

0

40%

100%

0%

More
than expected outputs

Target exceeded.

Target met

same budget allocation.

disbursement of funds
from NSF to NIHSS.

associations and
relevant bodies

society

Delays in the

professional

4

community, and

Support for

and technology

the science

working group projects.

humanities and

the humanities and

Groups

7

established, using the

More projects were thus

and positively reviewed.

community,

recognition of

and recognition of

Number of Working

4

Target exceeded. High

were received from

15 initiatives in

integrity, reputation

3.1

83.3%

higher education

To establish

Promote the

5

proposals were received

11

conferences

6

number of quality project

4

workshops and

Number of

research projects.

articles (ISI)
2.3

were received from

reviewed journal

Hubs

than expected outputs

Outputs - Peer

and Humanities

same budget allocation.
12

75%

met

Target exceeded. More

12

6

Explanations/Reasons
why the target was not

Catalytic Projects
Number of Research

14

Variance Variance

%

through a range of
2.2

8

2015/16

Actual

established, using the

Hubs

humanities and

11

2015/16

Target

More projects were thus

and 6 Humanities

teaching in the

Projects

Number of Catalytic

2.1

2014/15

Actual

in South Africa

Catalytic Projects

indicator

No

Key performance

social sciences

To establish 34

of research and

statement

Dynamise the fields

Strategic objective

Objective
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6.

5.

4.

Objective

professors and

establish a national

mentorship

programme

scholarship

through a range

of innovations

national initiatives

with universities

and other

institutions related

to the humanities

and social sciences

strengthen

networks and

partnerships with

organisations

working in areas

related to the

1

-1

8

-8

-3

-2

-36

-50%

450%

-100%

-75%

-50%

-90%

-12.5%

and positively reviewed.

proposals were received

number of quality project

Target exceeded. High

from NSF to NIHSS.

disbursement of funds

Delays in the

Target met.

from NSF to NIHSS.

disbursement of funds

Delays in the

from NSF to NIHSS.

disbursement of funds

Delays in the

from NSF to NIHSS.

disbursement of funds

Delays in the

India and China
6.3

4

0

0%

publications

research outputs -

indicator

Target met

from NSF to NIHSS.
4

conferences
Number of

disbursement of funds

workshops and
New

Delays in the

2

11

0

1

2

4

-2

met

why the target was not

same budget allocation.
1

2

8

4

4

40

14

%
Variance Variance

including Brazil,
Number of seminars,

indicator

New

indicator

New

indicator

New

indicator

New

indicator

New

16

Actual
2015/16

Global South,
6.2

New
indicator

Target
2015/16

established, using the

research projects

between South

projects

Number of research

Actual
2014/15

More projects were thus

collaborative

collaborations

6.1

publications

Number of joint

and publications

dialogues, seminars

Number of

laterals

conferences and bi-

colloquiums,

Number of

workshops

Number of regional

appointed

Professors

Mentors / Emeritus

Number of

indicator

Key performance

countries of the

international and

research

5.3

5.2

5.1

4.2

4.1

No

Africa, Africa,

To establish 10

Foster international

social sciences

humanities and

Host or co-host 10

Build and

doctoral students

supervision of

and collaborative

To appoint

postgraduate

statement

Advance

Strategic objective

Explanations/Reasons

STRATEGIC OBJECTIVE 1:
PROVIDE DOCTORAL SCHOLARSHIPS FOR POSTGRADUATE STUDENTS
STUDYING IN THE HUMANITIES AND SOCIAL SCIENCES IN SOUTH AFRICA

1. DOCTORAL SCHOOLS PROGRAMME

The NIHSS collaborates with the South

outside the borders of South

African Humanities Deans’ Association
(SAHUDA) to extend 150 scholarships

Africa; and
•

Addressing inequities with regard

per annum to full-time PhD scholars

to the demographic composition of

based at South African universities.

PhD holders.

The main objective of this programme

During

is to promote scholarship and address

NIHSS awarded scholarships to 137

inequities in the humanities and social

South African PhD students across 23

sciences. To ensure that successful

higher education institutions (HEIs) in

applicants are provided with structured

the humanities and social sciences. In

the

reporting

period,

the

intellectual and mentorship support,

terms of racial profile, 94.8% of these

the NIHSS–SAHUDA cooperation has

students are black (African, Indian and

created an ambitious national doctoral

coloured). The total intake of doctoral

programme for the humanities and

students

social sciences.

Doctoral Programme for the period

in

the

Prof. Nhlanhla Mkhize – Chairperson of
SAHUDA

NIHSS–SAHUDA

2014/2015–2015/2016 is 255. Of the
The

NIHSS

Doctoral

Programme

137 new students awarded doctoral

thus serves to advance postgraduate

funding during the reporting period,

scholarship in a variety of ways, including:

57% are female and 43% are male.
There was a marginal decrease (0.6%)

•

•

•

Providing

for

in the number of female students

postgraduate students studying in

supported between 2014/2015 and

the humanities and social sciences;

2015/2016.

Strengthening

scholarships

a

Prof. Ibrima Sall – Chairperson of
CODESRIA

student-centred

culture in the higher education

The NIHSS business process value chain

system and helping to create an

of pre-award, award and post- award

environment

critical,

processes are in line with international

analytical and normative capacities

where

the

best practices. An increase in efficiency

of students are enhanced;

and client service offering are designed

Ensuring collaborative supervision

to ensure that performance targets are

of doctoral students by two or

met and/or exceeded.

more universities, which could
include South African universities
collaborating

with
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Prof. Adam Habib – VC: Wits University,
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MEET SOME OF THE
NIHSS–SAHUDA
DOCTORAL FELLOWS

DAVID WA MAAHLAMELA
“The poet’s voice was, indeed, always able to come out strongest when things
seemed to go wrong. In this age whereby poetry, in most parts of the world,
is under pressure of justifying its importance and relevance, in South Africa

TEBOGO GEORGE MAHASHE
is a photographer and an NIHSS–
SAHUDA PhD fellow at the University
of Cape Town’s Centre for Curating the
Archive. Mahashe’s work is an invitation

it is clear that poetry has been, and continues to be the soul of the nation.”
These are the utterings of NIHSS–SAHUDA PhD student David wa Maahlamela
in the foreword to his book The Hoof-printed Rock. In addition to pursuing his
studies at Rhodes University, Wa Maahlamela serves as a council member for the
National English Literature Museum and on the Literature Advisory Panel for the
National Arts Council of South Africa.

into the aesthetic and cultural practices
of ba Lobedu ba gaModjadji, the
queendom of Rain Queen Modjadji. His
images challenge traditional notions of
the archive. He is the winner of the 2016
Fourth Wall Books Photobook Award
for his work with Abidjan-based fine art
photographer Joana Choumali, which
was an extension of his photographic
series MaBareBare. The award signals
a recognition of his artistic excellence
in his exploration of “the idea of

MARY ELIZABETH LANGE
is an NIHSS–SAHUDA PhD fellow at the University of KwaZulu-Natal. She is co-author
of the book Engraved Landscape Biesje Poort: Many Voices (published in 2013
by Tormentoso), which was nominated for the NIHSS Book, Creative and Digital
Collections Awards. The book is a critical reflection on community archaeological
practices. Lange is also a research advisor for the Centre for Communication,
Media and Society at UKZN. She has a number of journal publications and books
to her name. In addition, Lange has facilitated and edited books published under
the names of indigenous authors, specifically from the Kalahari region.

subjectivity in relation to the question
of: How does a contemporary scholar
engage the colonial archive?”

JOHN SOFKA
John Sofka holds a diploma in Philosophy from St Joseph’s Institute, Cedara, an

BOUDINA MCCONNACHIE’S
Listen & Learn: Music Made Easy is an
educational text that provides illustrative
examples, audio and visual material,
as well as archival material of the
International Library of African Music.
Reviewer Dr Alvin Petersen lauded the
text, writing, “various carefully thoughtout activities, together with the many
illustrations and images, makes this
publication the equivalent of a one-stop

Honours degree in Religious Studies from the University of Jos, Nigeria, and a Master’s
in Gender, Religion and Health from UkZN. He is passionate about understanding
historical and post-colonial African society. Having grown up in northern and
Middle Belt Nigeria, gaining insight into social conflicts is one of his major interests,
specifically the place of religion and ethnicity in society and contemporary conflicts.
He is also fascinated by the online world and culture.
John’s study is set against the background of tense ethnoreligious relations in
northern Nigeria, as well as the increasing relevance of the online space and
internet culture. He applies post-colonial theory and the emerging framework of
digital religion to explore the ways in which the southern kaduna religious and
ethnic identities are articulated and contested online in a closed Facebook forum.

shop, so that even the most fastidious
music/arts/life skills educator needs to
look no further”. McConnachie’s work

BIKWIBILI TANTOH HENRY

challenges perceptions of music being

Bikwibili Tantoh Henry holds Master’s and BSc degrees in Geography and

taught through Western methods and

Environmental Planning from the University of Dschang, Cameroon. He provided

showcases the educational value of

academic support to undergraduate students at this university, while working as a

indigenous African music.

part-time consultant. Bikwibili currently tutors at Wits’ department of Geography.
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His research interests are natural resources management, specifically involving
communities, and climate variation and change. Bikwibili’s study aims to investigate
the role of community based natural resources management (CBNRM) in promoting
the sustainable use of potable water in rural north-west Cameroon.

EROMESE EBHUOMA
Eromose Ebhuoma holds a Master’s degree in Safety, Health and the Environment
from the University of Salford, UK. During his studies, he participated in the Aim
Higher programme of Edge-Hill University, UK. He has completed the National
Examination Board in Occupational Safety and Health (NEBOSH) certifications in
construction health and safety, as well as international oil and gas operational
safety. Eromose tutors in Wits’ department of Geography and Environmental
Studies. His PhD study aims to understand the extent to which climate change
risk communication (CCRC) can help small-scale farmers in the rural Delta State of
Nigeria protect and/ or transform their assets; and if in doing so, they can adapt to
the impacts of climate change and/or variability and still continue food production
for a sustainable livelihood.

SERGE KUBANZA
Serge Kubanza holds a Master’s degree in Development Planning from Wits and
an BA Honours in Sociology and Anthropology from University of Kinshasa, DRC.
He has held positions at the Organisation of African youth, the ACTION Support
Centre and at CIVICUS: World Alliance for Citizen Participation (all in South Africa).
His interests include issues related to urban environmental management and
southern African regional solidarity. Serge’s study focuses on the social and
environmental injustice in solid waste management in Kinshasa. It aims to gain an
understanding of the institutional challenges and barriers involved in solid waste
management in this city, paving the way towards sustainable solutions to the solid
waste problem.

BOITUMELO SEEPAMORE
Boitumelo Seepamore is a Social Work lecturer at UkZN. She holds a BA degree
from the University of the Witwatersrand in Social Work and a Master’s degree in
Industrial Social Work from the same institution. Her areas of interest are parenting
and community engagement. Having worked in various fields, her experience ranges
from medical social work to local government. She has volunteered at various
organisations, and is a board member at the Meyrick Bennett Child Guidance Centre
in Durban and secretary of UkZNCORE, an NPO. Boitumelo’s research focuses on
the experiences of domestic workers in parenting their children from a distance
and how structural issues continue to impinge on communities and the family. This
qualitative study explores the views of domestic workers living or working in central
Durban in the eThekwini Metro.
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CLAYTON HAZVINEI VHUMBUNU
Clayton Hazvinei Vhumbunu holds a Master’s degree in International Relations
and an Honours degree in Public Administration, both from the University of
Zimbabwe. He has also completed various diplomas and certificates. Currently,
Clayton is an associate researcher at the Southern African Research and
Documentation Centre (SARDC). He has also had stints as senior administrative
officer and part-time lecturer. His papers have been published in various journals.  
The key objective of Clayton’s study is to interrogate the appropriateness and
sustainability of separatism as a strategy for resolving post-independence intra-state
ethnic, tribal and religious conflicts in postcolonial African states.  It draws lessons
and experiences from the Sudanese case in light of the African vision for continental
peace, prosperity and unity through regional and continental integration.

DOREEN NCHANG
Doreen Nchang is a graduate of the University of the Western Cape, University of
Yaoundé 1 and Ecole Normale Superieure with a Master’s degree in Linguistics,
Bachelor’s degree in English and a teacher’s qualification, respectively. She has
worked as a teacher (teaching English to French speakers at high school level),
researcher, tutor, co-lecturer and academic literacy consultant. Doreen has
participated in various research workshops, seminars and writing retreats. Her
research focuses on issues of language, migration and identity. Doreen’s study
aims to explore the different trajectories of a selected number of African migrants
into and around South Africa, coupled with the effects of these on their language
use patterns and linguistic identities. Informed by the interpretive paradigm,
the study will show the effects of space, migration, trauma and ethno-linguistic
tensions, like xenophobia, on people’s language use.

KGOTHATSO BRUCELY SHAI
Kgothatso Brucely Shai is a writer, poet and political analyst. He has been widely
published and has presented several academic papers at international and national
conferences. He has a Master’s degree in Political Science. His research interests
include public policy analysis, US foreign policy, Africa’s international relations and
politics. The aim of Kgothatso’s study is to critique the US foreign policy towards
Africa, particularly in Ghana and Tanzania, using an African perspective. One of
the study’s objectives is to give critical details of the areas of divergence and
convergence between the US foreign policy and the national interests of selected
African states in the context of oil politics.
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2. AFRICAN PATHWAYS PROGRAMME (APP)
The African Pathways Programme is
an expansion of the Continental and
Global South scope of the NIHSS. The
aim is primarily to develop an Africacentred programme and, further, to
facilitate research and teaching, including
national curriculum innovations. The APP
facilitates African research and teaching
networks through annual Mobility
Grants, to provide support to South
African researchers and postgraduate
students to access opportunities that
enhance targeted HSS scholarship
and collaborations within the African
continent.
The NIHSS collaborates with the Council
for the Development of Social Science
Research in Africa (CODESRIA) to extend
37 scholarships per annum to fulltime PhD non-South African scholars
based at South African universities.
This programme requires engagement
with various governments and their
education ministries, and other African
institutions of higher education.

The immediate goal is to create a
generation of multinational African
postgraduate students and scholars
in the humanities and social sciences
who focus their research, teaching and
writing on the parallels, continuities,
and differences in the cultures, social
formations,
histories,
knowledge
systems,
creativity
and
current
experience of the nations of Africa.
In the process, we hope to build new
intellectual communities and richer crossnational scholarly communication. We
also hope to increase the possibilities for
intensive comparative and collaborative
research, new insights and constructive
debates that will ensure that we reconceptualise Africa from an African
perspective – as most Euro-American
ideas of Africa are rooted in their
experience of and interest in Africa from
a colonial and post-colonial perspective.
The main objective of the APP is to
promote Pan-African scholarship in
the humanities and social sciences.

The scholarships would, for example, be
allocated to students whose research is
focused on their country of origin and/
or on a comparative project along the
following broad themes:
•
•
•

•
•

Pre- and post-colonial states,
institutions and local experiences;
Histories and legacies of liberation
struggles;
Regional
integration,
new
development
and
economic
alternatives;
International political economy and
the role of African humanities; and
Heritage, identity and culture
(including literature, performance,
art and musicology).

The APP scholarships include but are
not limited to the following disciplines:
Visual and Performing Arts, Journalism,
Languages, Communication, Linguistics,
Literature, Philosophy, History, Sociology,
Psychology, Economics and Education.
Seventy-four CODESRIA-NIHSS African
Pathways scholarships were awarded
during the 2015/16 financial year. Of
these, 69 students registered for the
2015 academic year, and funds were
disbursed to the universities. The
remaining five scholarship recipients
were unreachable despite numerous
attempts made to contact them; the
five unclaimed scholarships will be
reallocated to eligible students.
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“NEW THINKERS FOR A RENEWED AFRICAN HUMANITIES AND
SOCIAL SCIENCES”
- NIHSS National Doctoral Workshop held 29-30 July 2015, Birchwood Conference
Centre, Johannesburg

The

National

Humanities
(NIHSS)

for

Social

a

National

held

Workshop

Institute

and
in

Gauteng,

the

The purpose of the National Doctoral

Sciences

Workshopwas to bring together both

Doctoral

NIHSS-SAHUDA and NIHSS-CODESRIA

Birchwood

doctoral students, as part of nurturing

Hotel and Conference Centre, on

the

29 to 30 July 2015. The workshop

by

was held over two days and was

intellectual

attended by 282 NIHSS-SAHUDA and

doctoral workshop also aimed to:

next

generation

of

scholars

them

with

ongoing

support.

The

national

providing

SPEAKERS AT DOCTORAL
SCHOLARSHIP WORKSHOP

NIHSS-CODESRIA doctoral students.
The doctoral students represented

•

Encourage doctoral students to

17 participating universities across

think ‘’out the box’’ and “in-depth”

South

about their research and thus

Africa.

National

Doctoral

Workshop participants also included
representatives from the Department

reignite the HSS fields.
•

Introduce and provide a space

of Higher Education and Training

of interaction between doctoral

(DHET), National Skills Fund (NSF),

students and appointed mentors,

National Student Financial Aid Scheme

who are tasked with coordinating

(NSFAS),

doctoral schools and mentoring

publishers,

speakers,

international

humanities

and

social

science researchers from a wide range

NIHSS doctoral students.
•

Provide

capacity

building

to

of institutions. The workshop served

our cohort of doctoral students

not only as a platform for debate and

through a process of thematic

discussions regarding the state and
future of the Humanities and Social

specific discussions.
•

Sciences (HSS) in South Africa and
Africa, but also as a launch pad for the

Launch

selected

Regional

and

Thematic Doctoral Schools.
•

NIHSS Doctoral Schools Programme.

Establish a community of NIHSS
doctoral students who will nurture
each

other

with

within institutions and thematic

sessions,

research areas.

opportunity

also
for

provided

doctoral

an

students

•

Foster

engagement

between

to network, share information and

all partners, such as SAHUDA,

collective

CODESRIA and NSFAS, together

interacting

experiences;
with

while

funding

also

agencies,

Prof. Gill Hart

peer-support

Through its mentor-student centred
it

Dr Darlene Miller

with NIHSS doctoral students.

established NIHSS Catalytic Project
leaders and Regional Doctoral Schools

The workshop programme consisted

mentors.

of plenary presentations, structured
breakaway sessions and the exhibition
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of books and journals by an international

Project leaders facilitated discussions

•

Poverty and Livelihoods

publishing company. The first day of

under the following themes:

•

Wellness,

the workshop included path breaking
presentations

from

partners

such

Health,

Illness

and

Mortality
•

SAHUDA and CODESRIA interrogating

Art,

Literature,

Language

and

Society

It is envisioned that these Thematic

the state of affairs, epistemological and

•

Education and Criminology

sessions

methodological gaps and the future of

•

Environment and Sustainability

online Thematic Groups to sustain

HSS field. This was followed by Regional

•

Gender, Race and Family

conversations

Doctoral Workshop breakaway sessions,

•

International

where NIHSS doctoral students had
the opportunity to meet and interact

Regional

and National Integration
•

with their respective regional mentors.
Day two included very robust thematic

Relations,

Land

Reform

and

will

be

developed

and

into

collaborations

among students across disciplines and
institutions.

Rural

Development
•

group sessions where mentors, Catalytic

Local Government and Community
Formations

STRATEGIC OBJECTIVE 2:
DYNAMISE THE FIELDS OF RESEARCH AND TEACHING IN THE
HUMANITIES AND SOCIAL SCIENCES IN SOUTH AFRICA THROUGH A
RANGE OF CATALYTIC RESEARCH PROJECTS AND HUMANITIES HUBS

3. CATALYTIC RESEARCH PROGRAMME

Projects

funded

under

the

CRP

engage in research in areas that are
largely unexplored – such as pre-1652

The main objective of the Catalytic Research Programme (CRP) of the NIHSS is
to provide services to the higher education sphere within the humanities and
social sciences. This includes but is not limited to advancing learning within its
scope and application by ensuring collaboration and coordination with the work
of higher education.
The CRP is an initiative geared towards meeting the objectives of advancing
learning and increasing collaboration. This programme is based on the concept of
collaborative research programmes founded on an existing knowledge base and
expertise. The cornerstone of any Catalytic Research Project is that research project

historiography,

sources

of

creativity,

popular education, post-conflict and
reconstruction, indigenous languages,
the

humanities

concept-formation,

lineages of knowledge production in the
HSS, hidden voices and socio-economic
alternatives. CRP research must identify
the gaps that are located at the heart of
the struggles around contested spaces of
heritage, history, languages and culture.

leaders demonstrate collaboration with national and international researchers

During the reporting period, a total of

(experts) in their area of research.

14 CRPs were funded under the CRP.
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Table 1: HCD indicators of the Catalytic Research Project leaders (2015/2016)
Indicators

2015/16

To promote, support and strengthen coherent

Investment in Research Catalytic Projects (Rand)

research projects that aim to catalyse and open up

No of Catalytic Research Projects

new avenues of (HSS) scholarship,
Number of NIHSS funded researchers from desig-

Black %

nated groups

Black Number

R8 296 404
14
78.6%
11

Female %

35.7%

Female Number
Number and ratio of postgraduate students funded

Black %

per designated groups

Black Number

5
82.9%
29

Female %
Number of postgraduate students funded per level

Human capacity development (HCD)
indicators of the CRP indicate the race
and gender (equity) profile of the Catalytic
Research Project leaders as well as of
students funded within the programme.
The equity profile of the CRP leaders who
received funding during the reporting
period is 78.6% (11) black (African, Indian
and coloured) and 35.7% (5) female. The
equity profile of the students trained in
the programme is 82.9% black (African,
Indian and coloured) and 62.9% female.
Study levels shows that 21 masters and
10 PhD students were being funded. The
CRPs were mainly hosted at UW (29%);
UCT (14%) and UWC (14%). The NIHSS
aims to increase the participation of
historically black universities in the next
financial year.
During the period under review, a
second call for Catalytic Research
Projects was issued, on 19 November
2015, with a submission deadline of 18
December 2015. The call was advertised
in the Mail & Guardian (newspaper) and
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62.9%

Female Number

22

Undergraduate

3

Honours

1

Masters

21

Doctoral

10

Figure 4: CRPs funded per participating HEI, as % of total CRPs (2015/2016)
35%

29%

30%
25%
20%

14%

15%
10%

7%

7%

RU

SU

14%
7%

7%

7%

UJ

UKZN

UL

7%

5%
0%

UCT

UW

UWC WSU

on the NIHSS website. Notification was also sent to SAHUDA to disseminate the call
to all participating institutions. Over 40 research grant proposals were received from
HEIs across the country. All proposals were internally reviewed, which includes a
screening process assessing project and administrative compliance.
This was followed by the appointment of an external and independent review panel
consisting of three external reviewers, who reviewed the proposals against set criteria.
The outcome of the review process was that:
• Eight proposals were awarded full funding under the CRP;
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•

•

•

•

•

•

Two of the successful proposals
were considered to be Working
Groups and will be funded under
the Working Groups for Academic
Collaboration;
Ten proposals were considered
generally weak but showing some
potential to become catalytic
projects – these proposals were
recommended for seed funding;
Five proposals will be taken to the
Board for further discussion and
approval;
Four proposals were deemed
fundable
but
lacking
some
information – information will be
sourced from the project leaders
and taken back to be reviewed; and
Regret letters were sent to 21 project
leaders that were unsuccessful in
this second call for proposals.
Four (4) proposals were deemed to be
fundable, but lack some information.

•

Information will be sourced from the
project leaders and taken back to be
reviewed.
Regret letters were sent to 21 project
leaders that were unsuccessful in
this Call.

•
•
•

RESEARCH OUTPUTS AND
COLLABORATIONS FOR
2015/2016

•

A number of research outputs were
produced through the funding of the
NIHSS Catalytic Research Projects.
During the reporting period, the
research outputs credited to the CRP
numbered 45 (see Figure 4).
•
The categories of outputs are as follows:
•

arranged with team members and/
or collaborators and a further 4 are
in the planning stage;
Projects in the Arts and Music had 7
exhibitions and performances;
A total of 5 peer-reviewed articles
were published in ISI journals
A total of 8 non-peer-reviewed
articles were published;
With
regard
to
conference
proceedings, 2 local and 9
international conferences were
attended; in this regard, CRP
project leaders/team members
were either keynote speakers,
addressed participants in plenary
or presented peer and non-peerreviewed papers; and
In all, 14 book chapters were
produced.

A total of 13 workshops/symposiums/
meetings and/or conferences were

Figure 5: Research Outputs and collaborations
16
14
12
10
8
6
4
2
0
Number of
Performances/ Peer
workshops/
Exhibitions
reviewed
Symposiums/
journal
Conferences/
articles (ISI)
Meeting
and others
Published/Attended

13

In planning/pending

4

7

5
3

Under Review

1

Submitted

2
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Non-peer
reviewed
article/
concept
paper/technical report
8

Conference Conference
Books
Proceedings Proceedings - chapters/
- Local
International spcicial issue
or edited
volume
2

9

14

1

1

Other
research
outputs/
materials
produced
8

Collaboration
formed

13
1
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DR SAZI DLAMINI – UKZN
SOURCES OF CREATIVITY
•

NIHSS Catalytic Research Projects
researcher Dr Sazi Dlamini, a
renowned musician and scholar of
ethnomusicology, convened the 1st
International Bow Music Conference,
from 24–27 February 2016. The
conference brought together people
from different parts of the world who
showcased their musical prowess
playing the bows, including uhadi
and ikatari (Xhosa); Sotho lesiba,
sekhankuri and thomo; the chizambi
and chipendani mouthbows of
Mozambique and eastern Zimbabwe
as well as sitolotolo, makhoyana,
umqangala and makhweyana of the
Zulu and Swati people.
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•

Through their Catalytic Research Project traditions of popular education,
Professors Shirley Walters and Astrid von Kotze from the University of the
Western Cape founded a website dedicated to popular education. The project
is vested in the interests of people committed to learning and acting together
towards a fairer and more egalitarian society. The website is an advocacy tool
that offers readily available information on the theory and practice of popular
education, and on the content of particular issues. In addition to the website,
the project is involved in extensive scholarly and community engagement, as
seen with the colloquium Forging Solidarity: Southern perspectives of popular
education, and a workshop focusing on strengthening community action. The
project has also hosted Indian street theatre company Jana Natya Manch
(Janam), whose performances and workshops explored matters of workplace
exploitation and patriarchy, among others.

•

Prof. Pamela Maseko, Wandile Kuse and Jeff Opland’s William Wellington
Gqoba: Isizwe esinembali celebrates the poetry of early African intellectual
William Gqoba, born in 1840 in the Eastern Cape. Gqoba was a wagonmaker, preacher, teacher, historian, poet, folklorist and editor. He edited the
newspaper Isigidimi sama-Xhosa and went on to be a prolific author of poems,
among other texts. This book is a valued contribution to historical narratives of
early African intellectuals, which values storytelling and indigenous knowledge
production at large. Maseko and Opland are also authors of a collection of
historical poems titled D.L.P. Yali-Manisi: Iimbali Zamanyange.
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and relevance to today; an Educational

4. HUMANITIES HUBS: LILIESLEAF FARM

Outreach Programme; and a Mobile
Exhibition, which will visit universities.

The Humanities Hubs programme is

with our present and are able to

The exhibitions and activities that form

primarily research based, aiming to

imagine and construct our future. The

the hubs will provide opportunities for

catalyse and open up new avenues

principal purpose of and aim behind

conversation, reflection and engaging

for scholarship in the humanities and

this pilot project is two-fold: firstly,

the past, but also for looking forward,

social sciences and to assist in and

to develop an outreach programme

for critical reflection, and for imagination

promote the linking of HSS with the

to address the issue of memory, the

and creative responses to our history.

broader public, outside of universities.

struggle against forgetting and, in

The projects must tell the story of the

particular, the need to preserve and

liberation struggle – but in a fresh and

The NIHSS awarded the Liliesleaf

protect the memory of South Africa’s

appealing way. We want to move away

Trust funding under the Humanities

liberation

hence,

from the old, tired struggle rhetoric and

Hubs programme in March 2015.

ultimately, its history; and secondly

get visitors to look at the past with new

Being the first proposal to receive

(following on from this), highlighting

eyes, to find creative ways of interpreting

NIHSS Humanities Hub funding, the

why the humanities are essential and

our

Liliesleaf Trust hub is a pilot project

critical disciplines to study.

environments. Visitors should be inspired

struggle

–

and

and flagship for the programme.

to

present
discard

social
reactive,

and

political

obstructionist

The identified theme for this Hub is

The Humanities Hub Pilot Project

ways of expressing dissatisfaction and

memory and history. It is envisaged

comprises three phases: a Colloquium,

dissent, and find a new way forward: one

that by remembering and making

which aims to assess and analyse 21

bolstered by critical engagement and

sense of the past, we come to terms

years of democracy and its meaning

democratic discourse.

PHASE 1 – LIBERATION
STRUGGLE COLLOQUIUM

Higher Education and Training, the

During
the

the

NIHSS,

period
in

under

partnership

review,
with

the Liliesleaf Trust, hosted a very
successful colloquium (25 and 26
June 2015) to commemorate the
60th anniversary of the signing of the
Freedom Charter. The event, held at
Liliesleaf Farm in Rivonia, Gauteng, had
80 guests in attendance. Prominent
figures such as Rivonia trialist Denis
Goldberg, Dr Stephanie Matseleng
Allais representing the Minister of
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Ambassador of the Kingdom of Norway
Trine Skymoen, and former minister Dr
Essop Pahad were among the guests
that attended. The event created a
platform

for

engagement

effective
and

stakeholder

networking.

The

colloquium had six plenary sessions
over two days. Speakers presented
thematic papers, which were followed
by open discussions. The first day of
proceedings was concluded by a tour
of Liliesleaf Farm, which is a heritage
site, and an evening cocktail reception
and dinner.
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PHASE 2 – EDUCATIONAL OUTREACH PROGRAMME
During the reporting period, learners from nine public and private Gauteng schools
visited Liliesleaf as part of the process of reinforcing the importance of memory and
stimulating interest in the humanities. The educational resources detailed were
complemented by struggle stalwart Denis Goldberg’s first-hand account of the
liberation struggle. NIHSS directors that participated in the outreach programme
informed learners about the vision of the NIHSS of creating a new humanities and
social sciences

PHASE 3 - TRAVELLING EXHIBITION
The planning for Phase 3 of the project, themed around the South African liberation
struggle, occurred in the period under review.
For Phase 3, three universities – University of South Africa (UNISA), University
of Venda (UV) and North West University (NWU) – have been identified to host
an exhibition. The exhibition is an attractive design piece that uses historic
materials of the period 1952–1966. The aims of the exhibition are: (a) to stimulate
conversations on topics such as freedom, democracy and social justice; and (b)
for the host institution to co-organise a colloquium/seminar with the NIHSS. The
colloquium/seminar wishes to draw in international and local researchers on a
particular theme/topic. An edited volume is envisaged as an output of the seminar/
colloquium.
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STRATEGIC OBJECTIVE 3:
PROMOTE THE INTEGRITY, REPUTATION AND RECOGNITION OF THE
HUMANITIES AND SOCIAL SCIENCES WITHIN THE HIGHER EDUCATION
COMMUNITY, THE SCIENCE AND TECHNOLOGY COMMUNITY, AND SOCIETY

5. WORKING GROUPS PROGRAMME AND
STRATEGIC INITIATIVES

integrity and excellence of the HSS in
South African HEIs.
The

The Working Groups for
Academic Collaboration
programme involves
collectives of scholars
whose cooperation is geared
towards specified objectives.

following

Working

Groups

initiatives received funding during the
on establishing networks, fostering
dialogue

and

accelerating

production of research outputs.
The

Working

Groups

reporting period.

the

MAFIKA GWALA ANNUAL
LECTURE

programme

is intended to give effect to the

In September 2015, the South African

recommendations in the Charter for

History Online coordinated the first

Humanities and Social Sciences on

Mafika

These can be inter-disciplinary and

the HSS entity that will fundamentally

partnership with the NIHSS and the

domain-specific groups that focus on

change the existing higher education

University of KwaZulu-Natal (UKZN).

Gwala

Annual

lecture,

in

specific areas of research, teaching

landscape to make it more responsive

The event was held on 16 September

and learning in the humanities and

to, and inclusive of, the HSS and its

at UKZN’s Howard College campus

social sciences field. Working Groups

disciplinary particularities. The working

and was attended by just under

projects can also focus their activities

groups are also aimed at ensuring the

70

people,

including

high-school

students. The keynote speaker was
NIHSS Board Chairperson Prof. Ari
Sitas. Other speakers included Prof.
Donal McCracken (Acting Dean of
Humanities)
Associate

and

Senior

Research

Devarakshanam

(Betty)

Govinden.
•

The

Transformation

in

Higher

Education in South Africa working
group

project

hosted

national

dialogues and a writing workshop.
It

is

expected

that

written

contributions will be published
as

an

edited

book

volume:

Transformation in higher education.
This collection of biographical book
chapters will interrogate belonging
and
in

exclusion
South

as

African

experienced
academic

environments by black academics.
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•

Mapungubwe Institute for Strategic Reflection (MISTRA),

•

The UWC Luhlaza Leadership School, which is led by Prof.

organised a roundtable discussion on the role of

Olajide Oloyede and Dr Darlene Miller, hosted a writing

intellectuals in the state–society nexus. This roundtable

workshop (30 August–03 September 2015), using a

explores the place and role of intellectuals in the unfolding

methodology that integrated a “pedagogy of the soil” with

process of social change; whether the prominence of

the political act of indigenous self-writing. A food garden

intellectual input into the strategic direction of society was

cultivated by students was handed over to workers at the

a unique character of the phase of resistance and the early

farm venue where the workshop was held.

period of transition and whether the current situation is
reflective of the “normalization” of society.

AFRICAN PHILOSOPHY
WORKSHOP AND
CONFERENCE:
The African Philosophy project led by
Dr Edwin Etieyibo of the University
of the Witwatersrand is vested in
reinvigoration

and

rejuvenation

of

African philosophy through building
networks

and

fostering

strong

collaborations among researchers in
African philosophy. In 2015, the project
held a conference on 16 September,
and a roundtable meeting and book
launch on 9–11 September. These
efforts

brought

together

eminent

scholars from all over the world. The
organisers and editorial team are
working on papers from the workshop/
conference, to be published in 2016 in a
special issue of Philosophia Africana (an
international peer-reviewed journal) –
one of the most prestigious journals in
the field of African philosophy.
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THE GLOBAL WORKING
GROUP PROJECT
•

The World Order: Vision, Theory,
and

practice

working

in

group

the
project

Global
was

initiated to explore possibilities
of curriculum development and
research agendas for International
relations discipline. A workshop
on

“Decolonising

International

Relations in the time of crisis” and
a seminar title “Rethinking reform
and revolution in the 21st century”
were held has part of this project.

THE SOCIOLOGICAL
ASSOCIATION OF SOUTH
AFRICA DOCTORAL
WORKSHOP
This doctoral workshop, which took
place in June 2015, sought to assist
doctoral
their

students

scholarly

with

deepening

engagement

and

completing their doctoral studies in
good time. Local and international
sociologists presented eight lectures
to the doctoral students. Apart from
theoretical

and

methodological

concerns, the workshop dealt with the
issue of publishing, with sessions held
by representatives of the International
Sociological Association (ISA) and the
journal Current Sociology.
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THE 2016 INAUGURAL NIHSS BOOK, CREATIVE
AND DIGITAL COLLECTIONS AWARDS
– REDEFINING THE HSS LANDSCAPE!

The Inaugural NIHSS
Annual Humanities and
Social Sciences Awards for
Book, Creative and Digital
Collections were officially
launched during this
financial year.

Publishing Houses. Subsequently, over
30 esteemed academics were selected
as panel of judges and reviewers.
Chair Judges were nominated for each
category and added quite a unique,
individualised brand experience to the
NIHSS 2016 Inaugural Book, Creative
and Digital Collections Awards, namely:
Prof Pumla Dineo Gqola for Fiction
(Books); Prof Shireen Hassim for Non-

The key aim of these Awards is to

Fiction (Books); Mr Thembinkosi Goniwe

celebrate excellence in the humanities

for Creative Collections; and Ms Joyce

and social sciences, giving special

Myeza for Digital Collections.

recognition

to,

and

celebrating

outstanding, innovative and socially
responsive works by those members
of

the

HSS

community

who

are

undertaking the necessary labour of
creating

post-apartheid

and

post-

The Awards were allocated within
the following categories:
Digital Humanities (DH): Best DH tool
or suite of tools; and Best DH project for

colonial forms of scholarship, creative

community engagement.

and digital humanities productions.

Creative

They provide an opportunity to bring
into the limelight those intellectualcreative workers whose contributions
often go unnoticed both in the academy
and society at large. These include the

Collections:

Performance;

and

Best
Best

Public
Musical

Composition/Arrangement.
Books: Non-Fiction: Best Manuscript;
and Best Edited Volume.

authors, playwrights, poets, artists,

Books:

curators and publishers who ensure

(novel, short stories, volume of poetry,

Fiction: Best Single Authored

that we can enjoy these final products.

play); and Best Edited Volume.

The submissions for the Awards were

The winners are...

opened in 2015 for four categories:
Non-Fiction (books), Fiction (books),
Creative
Collections.

Collections
The

and
response

Digital
from

the academics and publishers was
phenomenal; the number and quality
of submissions was fantastic.
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More

Best DH tool or suite of tools
Nirma Madhoo – Chipps: Future Body:
Technological Embodiment in Digital
Fashion Media
Best DH project for community

than 90 submissions were received

engagement

in the four categories – representing

Shirley Walters & Astrid Von Kotze:

13 South African Universities and 20

Popular Education

35

Best Musical Composition/

Books: Non-Fiction: Best Monograph

Books: Fiction: Best Single Authored

Arrangement

Jacob Dlamini: Askari

Imraan Coovadia: Tales of the Metric

Sazi Dlamini, Neo Muyanga, Sumangala
Damodaran, Ari Sitas:

produced by

Jurgen Brauninger: Insurrections

System

Best Edited Volume
Peter Alexander, Claire Ceruti, Keke

Best Edited Volume

Motseke,

Joanne Hichens: Adults Only

Best Public Performance

Mosa Phadi & Kim Wale: Class in

Jay Pather: Live Festival

Soweto

The 2016 Inaugural NIHSS Book, Creative and Digital Collections Awards
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STRATEGIC OBJECTIVE 4:
ADVANCE POSTGRADUATE SCHOLARSHIP THROUGH A RANGE OF
INNOVATIONS AND COLLABORATIVE SUPERVISION OF DOCTORAL STUDENTS

6. NATIONAL MENTORSHIP PROGRAMME
(NMP)

NIHSS DOCTORAL SCHOOLS
MENTORS
Prof. Alois Simon Mlambo is Professor

THE NIHSS NATIONAL MENTORSHIP PROGRAMME - A FIRST
THAT SERVES AS A BEST PRACTICE IN ACADEMIC CIRCLES
An inimitable, meaningful innovation, the NIHSS National Mentorship Programme
(NMP) is one of the key components and a pillar of the Doctoral Scholarship
Programme. It is a “first” in South Africa and is completely unique to the NIHSS
Doctoral Scholarship Programme, designed to support our doctoral candidates. The
NMP was officially launched during the period under review as part of the NIHSS
National Doctoral Workshop held on 29-30 July 2015.

Programme aims to provide high-quality academic mentoring to all NIHSS doctoral
students through targeted interventions offering a communally based approach to
doctoral support. Mentors are broadly tasked with coordinating Doctoral Schools and
providing mentorship and development to NIHSS-funded students. Mentors also play
a critical role in facilitating the development of relevant research skills and encouraging
cross-institutional and interdisciplinary conversations among doctoral students. These
mentors’ contributions will play a significant role in providing enhanced doctoral
support within what is an increasingly strained postgraduate system.

in various capacities at universities in
Nigeria, Zimbabwe and the USA. Prof
Mlambo’s research has been widely
published and he has authored and
co-authored various academic books
and textbooks. He is a member of the
Southern

African

Historical

Society

Africa (HASA,) among other professional
organisations. Prof. Mlambo is also the
co-editor of HASA’s journal, Historia.
Prof. Paulus Mzomuhle Zulu is Director
and Senior Research Fellow of the
Maurice Webb Race Relations Unit at
the University of KwaZulu-Natal. He
has written a number of books, and
refereed research publications and

The NMP is a key component of the Doctoral Schools Programme. The NIHSS envisages
six virtual Doctoral Schools, organised along regional lines: Eastern Cape; KwaZuluNatal; Northern Corridor; Free State and UNISA; Western Cape; and Gauteng. Each
region has a number of universities, which have to collaborate and work together to
support the NIHSS doctoral candidates. Mentors are allocated the task of organising
regional capacity-building initiatives to support candidates who are based in specific
regions. These mentors are central to the smooth running of the NMP.

journals. Over the course of his career,
Prof. Zulu has been involved in various
special assignments, most recently
as chair of the Special Committee
investigating threats to social cohesion
in KwaZulu-Natal Province (appointed
by the Provincial Premier). He has
held

The NIHSS aimed to nominate 16 mentors, based at different universities across
South Africa, by the end of the 2015/2016 financial year. During the reporting
period, deans of participating institutions submitted nominations of distinguished
professors from their respective institutions and 14 mentors were appointed.

numerous

other

professional

memberships, including that of Human
Sciences Research Council (HSRC) board
member between 2010 and 2013.
Prof. Moeahabo Phillip Moila has been

In addition, during the period under review two regional Doctoral School workshops
were held - a Western Cape regional workshop attended by 78 PhD students; and a
Northern Corridor regional workshop with 26 PhD students and 23 PhD supervisors
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A seasoned academic, he has lectured

and the Historical Association of South

Constituted from a partnership between the NIHSS, the SAHUDA and CODESRIA, the

in attendance.

of History at the University of Pretoria.

a Lutheran pastor for 46 years. He is
also a Professor Emeritus in systematic,
practical theology; church and society;
and African theology. He has lectured
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at various institutions and served as

universities,

Johns

non-fiction for The Dead will Arise. Prof.

Bishop of the Evangelical Lutheran

Hopkins University in the US and

Peires is well versed in world history

Church in Southern Africa – Northern

Uppsala University in Sweden. He

with major expertise in Eastern Cape

Diocese. Prof. Moila is the Executive

was also Deputy Dean in the Faculty

and South African liberation history.

Director of the NGO Moyahabo Change

of Humanities at Rhodes University.

He became a member of parliament in

Education Agency. His work has been

Prof. Hendricks has edited and co-

1994 and worked in various capacities

published and presented extensively.

edited

in local government before returning to

as

various

well

as

at

publications,

most

recently The Promise of Land: Undoing

academia in 2009.

Prof. Jessica Murray is a Professor in

a Century of Dispossession in South

English Studies and Gender Studies at

Africa. He has also delivered journal

Prof. Kishore Raga is Research Associate

the University of South Africa (UNISA.)

articles, contributed chapters in books

at the Nelson Mandela Metropolitan

She has also been Acting Manager:

and presented papers globally. He is

University. He has lectured in various

Postgraduate Studies and Research

currently the chief editor of the Journal

capacities, both locally and abroad, and

in the College of Human Sciences at

of Contemporary African Studies. In 2014,

served as an external auditor and on

UNISA. Her current research focuses on

he initiated the Unit for the Humanities

the re-curriculation panels at several

violence and gender in southern African

at Rhodes University (UHURU). He

tertiary institutions. His work has been

writing

representations

was also the Founding President of

widely published. Prof. Raga is a member

in South African literature. She has

the South African Humanities Deans’

of the editorial board and copy editor of

published in various peer-reviewed

Association.

International Journal of Organisations

and

journals

queer

and

has

presented

at

& Human Behaviour (India) and the

conferences, seminars and workshops.

Prof.

Associate

African Journal of Public Affairs. He is a

Prof. Murray is the founding co-editor

Professor/Senior Supervising Clinical

member of the Association of Southern

of

Gender

Psychologist in the Department of

African Schools and Departments of

Questions. She served on the awards

Psychology at the University of the

Public Administration and Management

panel for the NIHSS Book, Creative and

Witwatersrand

(Wits).

(ASSADPAM).

Digital Collections.

received

department’s

the

academic

journal

Garth

the

Stevens

is

In

2014,

he

annual

School Research Award, was elected

Prof. Johann van der Walt is Professor

Prof. Michael Chapman is affiliated

to the Wits Senate and was appointed

Emeritus at North West University

as a Retired Professor to the Durban

as Assistant Dean in the Faculty of

where he is the manager for Short

University of Technology. He remains

Humanities (Research). Prof. Stevens

Courses in the School of Languages. His

a Professor Emeritus and Fellow of the

has been widely published in peer-

fields of specialisation include language

University of KwaZulu-Natal, and is a

reviewed journals, books and texts. He

teaching and testing, second language

Fellow of the Stellenbosch Institute for

is a member of the Psychological Society

acquisition,

Advanced Study. He is also the NIHSS

of South Africa’s national executive

academic literacy. His current research

doctoral mentor at the University of

and of its publications committee,

field is assessment of academic literacy.

the Western Cape. He serves on the

as well as a member of the editorial

Prof. Van der Walt has published 62

Humanities Standing Committee of the

board of the South African Journal of

articles in academic journals, 2 books,

Academy of Science of South Africa.

Psychology, among other professional

a monograph, 8 papers in conference

A-rated

memberships.

proceedings

by

the

National

Research

Foundation, Prof. Chapman is regarded

reports,

English

and

study

linguistics

various

notes,

test

and

research
series,

as a leading literary critic. Among his

Prof. Jeffrey Brian Peires is Adjunct

numerous publications are the 600-

Professor in the Department of History

page history, Southern African Literatures

at the University of Fort Hare. He is a

Prof. Nhlanhla Maake is Professor

(1996; 2003) and the collection of

seasoned academic who has published

of English Studies at the University of

essays, Art Talk, Politics Talk (2006).

books, and contributed book chapters

South Africa. He is a member of the

workbooks and language courses.

as well as numerous articles to a range

Distribution Agency of Arts, Culture,

been

of publications. In 1988, he received the

Environment and National Heritage of

employed at various South African

Sunday Times Alan Paton award for best

the National Lotteries Commission. He

Prof.

Fred

Hendricks
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has a strong interest in language policy

South

Society

Prof. Hendrik Jakobus Kotzé is a

issues, drama, theatre and comparative

between 1993 and 1995, among other

research fellow at the Centre for

literature. Prof Maake is currently Vice-

professional positions.

International and Comparative Politics

African

Historical

Chairperson of the English National

at Stellenbosch University (SU). He has

Language Body and a council member

Prof. Patrick Themba Sibaya is a

also been Dean in the Faculty of Arts

of the English Academy of Southern

retired Senior Research Professor

and Social Sciences at SU. Prof. Kotzé is

Africa. He has presented papers at

in the Faculty of Education at the

a member of the International Political

international and local conferences,

University of Zululand. He has also

Science Association and the South

and has published more than 70 items,

been

African Association of Political Studies.

including 3 accredited books and 20

Affairs

that

His areas of specialisation include

fictional works. He has won several

university, during which time he led

comparative political behaviour (focus

literary awards.

the development of the University

on elite behaviour and value change),

Strategic

Plan

is

comparative public policy analysis, and

Prof Paul Robert Maylam has been

actively

involved

conference

political risk analysis, as well as African

Professor of History and Head of

presentations,

research

and South African politics. Prof. Kotzé

Department at Rhodes University.

output includes books, chapters in

has been extensively published locally

He has produced numerous books,

books, and numerous contributions

and internationally.

articles and essays, and delivered

to scientific journals. Prof. Sibaya has

papers at various conferences locally

also been commissioned to participate

and abroad. He is on the editorial

in research for various key projects.

boards of the Journal of Natal and Zulu

He is a member of the South African

History and the Journal of Contemporary

Journal of Psychology and Journal of

African Studies, and a reader of draft

Psychology in Africa’s editorial boards,

book manuscripts and articles. Prof

among others.

the

Vice-Rector

and

Research)

(Academic
at

2008–2011.
and

in
his

He

Maylam was the president of the
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STRATEGIC OBJECTIVE 5:
BUILD AND STRENGTHEN NETWORKS AND PARTNERSHIPS WITH
ORGANISATIONS WORKING IN AREAS RELATED TO THE HSS

MAPUNGUBWE INSTITUTE
FOR STRATEGIC REFLECTION
(MISTRA)
During the period under review, the
Institute initiated partnerships with
various organisations including MISTRA. The following seminars were
organised and co-hosted by MISTRA
and the Institute: (1) Arts and national
development; (2) Changing economic
imbalances in Africa; (3) Addressing
the innovation chasm; and (4) Social
transformation and the burden of
white privilege.

Professors, Xolela Mangcu and Ibbo Mandaza at the MISTRA Roundtable on Whiteness

The focus of the first dialogue was on
changing economic imbalances in Africa, where papers were presented by Dr
David Karumbidza, Dr Philani Mthembu
and representatives of international
universities. A seminar on “addressing
the innovation chasm” was hosted by
MISTRA in partnership with the Institute
for Economic Research on Innovation
(IERI.) The project is aimed at the evolution of systems of innovation in South
Africa. At the seminar on social transformation and the burden of white privilege, the opening address was delivered
by former deputy president Kgalema
Motlanthe.
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MISTRA roundtable audience members
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STRATEGIC OBJECTIVE 6:
BUILD AND STRENGTHEN NETWORKS AND PARTNERSHIPS WITH
ORGANISATIONS WORKING IN AREAS RELATED TO THE HSS

7. BRICS PROGRAMME
ICSSR–NIHSS INITIATIVE JOINT RESEARCH
Further to the Memorandum of Understanding signed between the Indian Council
of Social Science Research (ICSSR) and the NIHSS, research proposals were
invited for funding for joint research projects between Indian and South African
researchers in the field of social sciences. Proposals could only be submitted by
researchers affiliated to research institutions/university faculties and departments
recognised by the respective Indian and South African funding organisations.
The objective of this programme is to promote and strengthen research cooperation
in the field of the humanities and social sciences between the two countries. To this
end, funding allows joint research activities for internationally excellent research
in relevant areas of mutual interest and benefit. There is a strong emphasis on
bilateral cooperation and the desire to strengthen the research cooperation on
the basis of equality.
The NIHSS and the ICSSR advertised a joint call for research proposals between
South African and Indian researchers in the social sciences. The call for proposals
closed on 15 June 2015. In all, 16 applications were received in South Africa and 14
in India. The applications were screened for administrative and project compliance
and prepared for review.
The NIHSS–ICSSR Joint Advisory Committee (JAC) meeting was held on 03 November
2015 in Cape Town, South Africa. The JAC approved six NIHSS applications for full
funding and two for seed funding. Five of the ICSSR applications were approved
for funding. Due to delays in the review process of the NIHSS–ICSSR project, award

Drs Darlene Miller and Neo Lekgotla laga
Ramoupi

letters were sent to successful project leaders on 14 December 2015. The first
tranche of funding was paid in the final quarter of the reporting period. A workshop
held on 30 March 2016 presented project leaders with the opportunity to discuss
their projects and expected project outcomes.
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ESTABLISHMENT OF THE SABTT

Economic Sciences presented a paper
titled “Trade-off for the BRICS Bank
interaction

into

the

international

financial architecture”.
The BRICS Research Agenda, which
underpins the BRICS Visiting Scholars
Programme, and the BRICS Scholarship
are under construction.
The NIHSS participated in the 7th Annual

In the period under review,
the South African cabinet
approved the establishment
of a dedicated South African
BRICS Think Tank (SABTT),
which would serve as a
national focal point for the
country on BRICS-related
matters. The DHET took
overall responsibility for
the coordination of the
BRICS Think Tank Council
(BTTC) and Academic Forum
activities.

between the HSRC and the NIHSS for

BRICS Think Tank Council and Academic

the handover of the SABTT, with initial

Forum, held in Moscow, Russia from

meetings held between the HSRC, the

21–23 May 2015.

DHET and the NIHSS to negotiate the
An NIHSS BRICS workshop with funding

handover process.

agencies was hosted by the Centre
The Business Plan for the SABTT has

for African Studies at the University

been approved by the NIHSS Board, and

of Cape Town on 3 and 4 November

the recruitment process commenced in

2015; the workshop sought to explore

the final quarter of the reporting period.

the converging and diverging themes

The following activities were completed

across the BRICS countries.

and/or are in progress during the period
On 5 and 6 November 2015, UCT’s

under review:

Centre for African Studies also hosted
The

nomination

letter,

nominating

an NIHSS BRICS Deans Workshop

the 10 Academic Council members,

from

has been sent to the Minister of

Sciences (HSS) from BRICS countries.

Higher Education and Training for

The purpose of the meeting was to

consideration.

discuss the role of BRICS in not only

The Human Sciences Research Council

the

Humanities

and

Social

the HSS fields but higher education

(HSRC) was appointed on an interim

The BRICS SABTT has five long-term

as a whole, as well as to identity areas

basis to serve as the SABTT from 2013–

strategic pillars. These pillars have been

for cooperation and principles that will

2015, with the mandate of incubating

divided into five Thematic Clusters,

underpin such cooperation.

the BRICS Think Tank on behalf

with 20 academics within each cluster.

of South Africa. After a ministerial

A list of the five Thematic Clusters and

The

committee

identified

academics who will serve on each

hosted a five-day conference (29

the frameworks for the SABTT and

cluster has been drafted and is awaiting

November–03 December 2015) with

the location of the SABTT, the DHET

the NIHSS CEO’s approval.

the central theme of “shaping the

report

had

concluded that the SABTT should be

South

African

Cities

network

future of Africa with the people: the

located at the NIHSS. An amendment

The

to the Regulation published for the

producing

establishment of the NIHSS was made
in order to allow for the movement of

in progress. The first BRICS seminar

in a panel session that focused on the

the SABTT to the NIHSS.

series was hosted on 22 March

future of BRICS in African cities and,

A

draft

Understanding
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contribution of African local authorities

working

to Agenda 2063 of the African union”.

documents, has been initiated and is

The SABTT was invited to participate

series,

aimed

programmatic

2016. Professor Ronney Ncwadi from

as part of the NIHSS mandate, the

of

the Nelson Mandela Metropolitan

Institute sent a participant to represent

developed

University’s Faculty of Business and

the SABTT.

Memorandum
was

at

seminar
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The NIHSS hosted its first Academic

The SABTT needs an Academic Forum

The event was well received and a

Forum for the SABTT on 08 March

that will function as a key instrument in,

great start in establishing the NIHSS

2016. The workshop aimed to provide

among others, the following:

position as the host of the SABTT.

an understanding of and insight into
what the Academic Forum is about

A total of 80 delegates attended
•

Advising government on various

the Academic Forum. The NIHSS, in

and foster the building of a network

issues (such advice to rely on

collaboration with the DHET, DIRCO,

of academics and researchers around

research

South

DAC, DoH and DST, is currently putting

the country who are working on

African academics and researchers

together a Social Cluster Strategy for

areas aligned to the BRICS agenda.

acting alone and/or in partnership

approval by parliament.

The workshop also discussed the

with other BRICS academics and

development of a research agenda for

researchers);

the SABTT Academic Forum.

•

conducted

by

Providing a platform for sharing
ideas

and

discussing

research

priorities; and
•

Providing the possibility of and
platform for dialogue.

Launch of the SABTT Academic Forum
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Human Resources and Administration
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HUMAN
RESOURCES AND
ADMINISTRATION

The overall staff turnover was 13.0%
(4 staff members) against the national
average of 16.4%.

OCCUPATION
HEALTH AND SAFETY
(OHS)

The headcount for 2015/2016 was 24
Effective
recruitment

people

development,

and

management

are critical to our ability to deliver
effectively on the NIHSS mandate and
strategy. The HR function is to ensure
that the NIHSS has the right number of

staff members (of a planned full staff
complement of 31).

Occupational

health

and

safety

compliance is important for the health

STAFF TRAINING AND
DEVELOPMENT

and safety of the workforce, and the
Institute is no exception. In the year
under review, we ensured the following
OHS compliance:

qualified people aligned to the NIHSS
overall vision and mission.

Fundamental

to

NIHSS

current

and future success is an ongoing

STAFF RECRUITMENT
AND TURNOVER

commitment

to

improving

the

execution and effective management

•

First aid kits purchased;

•

OHS signage installed;

•

Fire drill conducted; and

•

An OHS committee established.

of a set of basic HR processes and
tools. In the year under review, the
HR Policies and Procedures manual

PERFORMANCE
MANAGEMENT
SYSTEM

In the year under review, recruitment

was approved by the Board, and staff

agency

was

members received training on these

appointed to recruit talented individuals

policies. An induction workshop was

with the required competencies to

held to inform new staff members

deliver on the NIHSS mandate. In the

about the Institute, its mandate and

In the year under review, performance

year under review, 11 new staff members

its existing policies. Other training

agreements were developed for all staff

were recruited. This is an increase of

opportunities

Pastel

members. A mid-year performance

4.3% from 2014/2015, when 10 new

Finance and Payroll training course for

review was conducted, as well as

staff members joined the Institute.

finance and HR staff.

monthly probation reviews.

Mindworx

Recruiting

included

a

HR OVERSIGHT STATISTICS
Table 4: Personnel cost 2015/2016
Personnel
Programme/ Activity/Objective

Total

Personnel

expenditure

Expenditure

Expenditure

as a % of total

No. of
employees

expenditure

Avg.
cost per
employee
(R’000)

Top management

35 836 601

4 963 417

13.9%

5

992 683

Activity driven personnel expenses

30 103 270

4 169 343

13.9%

13

320 719

Administrative Personnel expenses

10 315 994

1 428 779

13.9%

6

238 130

Total

76 255 865

10 561 539

13.9%

24

440 064

Note: Personnel expenditure includes expenditure in relation to permanent, contract and interim employees.
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Table 5: 2015/2016 Personnel cost per salary band
% of personnel

Personnel

Level

Expenditure

exp. to total

No of employees

personnel cost

Average cost
per employee

Top Management

4 963 417

47%

5

992 683

Senior Management

1 044 002

10%

3

348 001

Professionally qualified

527 975

5%

1

527 975

Skilled, Technical and Academically qualified

3 641 368

34%

12

303 447

Semi-skilled

305 021

3%

2

152 511

Unskilled

79 756

1%

1

79 756

Total

10 561 539

100%

24

440 064

Note: Personnel expenditure includes expenditure in relation to permanent, contract and interim employees.

Figure 6: 2015/2016 personnel cost per salary band
Semi-skilled

1% Unskilled
3%

Skilled,
Technical and
Academically
qualified

34%
47%

5%

Top
Management

10%

Professionally qualified
Senior Management

Table 6: 2015/2016 Staff training expenditure
Personnel
Programme/

Total

Personnel

expenditure

Expenditure

Expenditure

as a % of total

No. of
employees

expenditure
Staff training

10 561 539

21 510

0.2%

Avg.
cost per
employee
(R’000)

6

3 585

During the reporting period, three staff members were trained on the Sage HR and Payroll and three staff members received
training on the Financial Sage Evolution system.
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Table 7: Employment and vacancies as at 31 March 2016
2015/2016

2015/2016

Approved Posts

No. of

(NIHSS)

Employees

Top Management

6

Senior Management

2015/2016

% of

Vacancies

vacancies

5

1

16.7%

3

3

-

0%

Skilled

18

13

5

27%

Semi-skilled

2

2

0

0%

Unskilled

1

1

-

0%

Total

30

24

6

22.6%

Appointments

Terminations

Level

Table 8: Employment changes during 2015/2016
Employment
Level

at

Employment at
31/03/2016

31/03/2015
Top Management

4

1

1

4

Senior Management

1

2

-

3

Professionally Qualified

1

-

1

0

Skilled

5

7

2

10

Semi-skilled

1

1

-

2

Unskilled

1

-

-

1

Total

13

11

4

20

Table 9: Reasons for employee turnover for the 2015/2016 financial year
Reason

Employment at 31/03/2015

Appointments

Dismissal

1

25%

Expiry of contract

2

50%

Resignation

1

25%

Total

4

100%

Table 10: Labour Relations: Misconduct and disciplinary Action
Nature of disciplinary action

Number

Verbal warning

1

Written warning

1

Final written warning

1

Dismissal

1

Total

4
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EQUITY TARGET
AND EMPLOYMENT
EQUITY STATUS

Figure 7: Overall race profile of NIHSS staff (2014/15 and 2015/2016)
100%
90%
80%

The overall profile of the NIHSS in terms
of race is 88% African, 4% coloured, 8%
Indian and 0% white, against targets of
74.9%, 10.8%, 3.0% and 11.3% for the
respective groups.

70%
60%
50%
40%
30%
20%
10%
0%

The gender profile of the NIHSS is
67% female and 33% male. In the

African

Coloured

Indian

White

period under review, the number

2014/2015

79%

7%

14%

0%

of males employed at the NIHSS

2015/2016

88%

4%

8%

0%

increased by 26% and the number of
females decreased by 26% year on
year, bringing the Institute closer to
the national target of 45.2% females
and 54.8% males. The profile at
management level is 87.5% African and
12.5% coloured, and 62.5% female and
37.5% male.

Figure 7: Overall race profile of NIHSS staff (2014/15 and 2015/2016)
100%
90%
80%
70%
60%
50%
40%
30%
20%
10%
0%
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Female

Male

2014/2015

93%

7%

2015/2016

67%

33%
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MEET THE MEMBERS OF THE NIHSS BOARD
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OUR EX OFFICIO BOARD MEMBERS:

NIHSS CEO
Dr Sarah Mosoetsa

Prof. Nhlanhla Mkhize

Mr John Pampallis

NIHSS CFO
Mr Kibiti Lephoto
5 January – 31 December 2015

MEET THE MEMBERS OF THE NIHSS EXECUTIVE TEAM

CEO,
Dr Sarah Mosoetsa

52

Academic Director
Dr Nthabiseng Motsemme

Administration Director
Ms Yolanda Davids

CFO
Mr Kibiti Lephoto
5 January – 31 December 2015
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GOVERNANCE IN
NIHSS

GOVERNANCE COMMITTEES
A number of governance committees are in place to assist and advise the CEO in her
duties. The NIHSS governance committees include the following:

The leadership of the NIHSS – its Board,
CEO and management team – are
responsible for ensuring that the NIHSS
applies all the relevant governance and
risk management principles.

NIHSS BOARD AS
ACCOUNTING AUTHORITY
The NIHSS Board is appointed by
the Minister of Higher Education and
Training, and is empowered as the
accounting

authority,

through

the

Regulations for the Establishment of a
National Institute for the Humanities
and Social Sciences, 2013 (Government
Notice No. 952 of 2013) in accordance
with the provisions of the Higher
Education Act, 1997 (No. 101 of 1997)
and the PFMA (No. 29 of 1999).

creativity,

integrity

Executive Committee

•

Audit and Risk Committee;

•

Finance and Procurement committee

•

Human Resource Committee

•

Academic Committee; and

•

International advisory Committee

The establishment of the NIHSS governance committees was approved on 10
June 2014. All the chairs of the governance committees had also been confirmed
on 10 June 2014, except for the Finance and Procurement and the Audit and Risk
Committee Chairpersons, who were confirmed on 14 December 2015.
All governance committees of the NIHSS function under a mandate of strategic
or financial importance to the Institute as governed by the Statute of the NIHSS,
published on 05 December 2013 (in Government Gazette No. 37118). The committees
are chaired by persons with the requisite knowledge, skills and experience.

Executive committee
The Executive Committee deals with governance matters and other strategic

The Board is required to exercise
leadership,

•

and

good judgement by providing strategic
leadership and by exercising oversight

matters as they relate to the NIHSS, and is chaired by Prof. Ari Sitas, the Chairperson
of the Board.

Audit and Risk Committee

over all matters of the Institute and

This committee’s role is to assist the Board with discharging its duties relating to

the

that

the safeguarding of assets, the operation of adequate systems and controls, the

impacts on the Institute – including,

overseeing of integrated reporting, and the reviewing of financial information, in

but not limited to, the King Report on

compliance with all applicable legal requirements and accounting standards as

Corporate Governance in South Africa

prescribed in the PFMA. Ms Nokuthula Selamolela was appointed as the Chairperson

(King III) and the King Code of Corporate

of the Audit and Risk Committee, on 14 December 2015. Please Note: Ms Selamolela

Governance.

is an independent member and Chairperson of the Audit and Risk Committee but

compliance

environment

not necessarily a member of the NIHSS Board.
Eleven NIHSS Board members were
appointed on 27 March 2014, under

Finance and Procurement Committee

the leadership of Prof. Ari Sitas as
Chairperson. One Board member (Prof.

The mandate of the Finance and Procurement Committee, which is guided by the

Moyo) passed away during the period

PFMA, is to advise the NIHSS Board on financial and investment matters and on long-

under review, and one new Board

term infrastructure development at the NIHSS. In fulfilling this role, this committee

member (Mr Smith) was appointed in

is tasked with reinforcing the NIHSS governance function with regard to sound,

December 2015.

responsible and effective financial planning, financial administration, and financial
governance, and proper financial reporting. This committee considers and evaluates
all tenders (including research contracts) of the NIHSS.

Annual Report 2015 / 2016

53

For

the

year

under

review,

the

service conditions. The HR Committee

committee members were Prof. Fiona

mainly attends to the employment

Tregenna, Mr Ivor Baatjes and Prof. Ari

contracts,

Sitas, with CFO Mr Kibiti Lephoto as an

performance evaluation of the CEO

ex officio member. The Chairperson,

and other members of the executive

Mr Stephen Smith, was appointed on

team.

remuneration

and

Human Resources Committee

Rosemary

Moeketsi

was

appointed as the Chairperson of this
committee on 10 June 2014. For the

The role of this committee is to

year under review, the committee

ensure that adequate HR policies and

members were Ms Luli Callinicos,

strategies are in place, and to monitor

Mr Alex Mashilo, Dr Vukile Khumalo

the implementation of these policies

and Prof. Ari Sitas, as well as Mr John

and strategies in accordance with set

Pampallis in an ex officio capacity. This

criteria and measures.

committee held two meetings during
the period under review (see Table 11

This committee is responsible for all

The mandate of this committee is
to advise the NIHSS Board on all
international work of the Institute,
including international collaborations

14 December 2015.
Prof.

International Advisory Committee

for more detail).

and partnerships. The main function
of this committee is to establish and
support an international committee of
co-opted members solicited from other
similar institutions in other parts of the
world – including, but not limited to,
Brazil, India, East and West Africa and
SADC countries.
The Chairperson of this committee was
Prof. Sam Moyo, who was appointed on
10 June 2014. Its members were Prof.

HR and employment equity-related

Ahmed Bawa, Prof. Fiona Tregenna, Ms

matters, including remuneration and

Luli Callinicos and Prof. Ari Sitas, as well
as CEO Dr Sarah Mosoetsa and Mr John

Table 11: Meetings held by the Human Resources Committee during 2015/2016
Board Members

Pampallis as ex officio members.

Meetings
31 August 2015

08 February 2016

Chairperson

Prof. Rosemary Moeketsi

Yes

Yes

Member

Ms Luli Callinicos

No

No

Member

Mr Alex Mashilo

Yes

No

Member

Dr Vukile Khumalo

No

No

Member

Prof. Ari Sitas

Yes

No

Ex officio

Mr John Pampallis

No

Yes

Academic Committee
The primary function of the Academic Committee is to advise the Board on matters
related to the intellectual trajectories of the Doctoral Schools, Catalytic Research
Programme, Humanities Hubs, and the African Pathways Programme. This committee
reviews the thematic and policy guidelines for all calls for proposals and Doctoral
School applications.
In the year under review, Dr Pamela Maseko acted as the Chairperson of this
committee, and the members were Prof. Ahmed Bawa, Mr Ivor Baatjes, Prof. Sam
Moyo (deceased, November 2015), Mr Alex Mashilo and Prof. Ari Sitas, as well as
three ex officio members: Dr Sarah Mosoetsa, Prof. Nhlanhla Mkhize and Mr John
Pampallis. No Academic Committee meetings were held during the reporting period.
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MEETINGS OF THE BOARD AND ITS COMMITTEES
The NIHSS Board met three times during the 2015/2016 financial year. The dates and attendance of the members are
indicated in Table 12.

Table 12: Meetings of the NIHSS Board during 2015/2016
Meetings (2015)

Board Members

05 June

09 November

11 December

Chairperson

Prof. Ari Sitas

Yes

Yes

Yes

Member

Ms Luli Callinicos

Yes

Yes

Yes

Member

Prof. Rosemary Moeketsi

No

Yes

No

Member

Prof. Ahmed Bawa

No

No

No

Member

Prof. Sam Moyo

No

Yes

Member

Prof. Fiona Tregenna

Yes

Yes

Yes

Member

Dr Bernard Nthambeleni

No

Yes

Yes

Member

Dr Vukile Khumalo

Yes

No

Yes

Member

Mr Ivor Baatjes

Yes

Yes

No

Member

Mr Alex Mashilo

No

Yes

No

Member

Dr Pamela Maseko

Yes

Yes

Yes

Mr John Pampallis (DHET)

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

No

Yes

Yes

Ex officio

Prof. Nhlanhla Mkhize (SAHUDA)
Dr Sarah Mosoetsa (CEO)

Yes

No
(deceased November 2015)

REMUNERATION OF THE BOARD
The remuneration of the NIHSS Board members is determined in line with the National Treasury guidelines. Please Note: The
Board remuneration is disclosed under Note 17 of the Annual Financial Statements.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND RISK ASSESSMENT
The NIHSS aims to follow a robust approach to risk management. Risks, and the mitigation thereof, are continually discussed
at the NIHSS governance structures as well as during regular staﬀ engagements. The identified risks of the NIHSS are assessed
on an ongoing basis. A risk register has been established and is reported on at various relevant levels within the NIHSS. The
Executive Committee has also reviewed existing controls to ensure that these are still eﬀective and in place.
During the reporting period, the NIHSS identified and assessed the key risks facing the organisation, and agreed on a range of
mitigation strategies (see Table 13).
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Table 13: NIHSS risk assessment for 2015/2016
Risk Assessment Sources

Risk assessment

Mitigation
The NIHSS funding will be derived from the fiscus, through the DHET’s

Funding

budgetary allocation. The institute is thus not reliant on external grants,

Yes

which ensures that the priority NIHSS interventions are adequately
supported.

Stakeholder buy-in

The NIHSS, and in particular the seven strategic programmes enjoy the

Low

support of all stakeholders, (represented most directly by SAHUDA).
It is difficult to assess this risk, but given the high level of support that

Student commitment

Low/ medium

the NIHSS-SAHUDA doctoral programme had received from academics
and students, the prediction is that this risk will continue to remain
relatively low.

Internal Control

monitoring system. Policy compliance

Supply Chain Management (SCM)

is monitored manually. To the extent
senior

possible, the NIHSS complied with

In accordance with the statutory

managers in the NIHSS are responsible

the laws and policies impacting on

regulations

for ensuring that internal controls

its business, during the period under

regulation 16 A of the PFMA (No. 1 of

are

review.

1999 as amended by No. 29 of 1999)

The

CEO,

executives

implemented,

monitored

and

maintained

within

their

and

Internal Audit

under

on supply chain management (SCM),

respective

portfolios.

stipulated

Our organisation is bound to the

the NIHSS had an approved Supply

following legislation and regulation:

Chain Management policy with an
effective date of 09 November 2015,

•
The Audit and Risk Committee is

Basic Conditions of Employment Act,

in the period under review. The policy

1997;

aims to implement an efficient and

pivotal in ensuring that the internal

•

Employment Equity Act, 1998;

effective SCM system and processes

audit function is independent and

•

Education Law Amendment Acts,

for the acquisition of goods and

2007, 2011;

services that adhere to international

has

the

necessary

standing

and

authority to deliver on its functions.

•

Higher Education Act, 1997;

best practices, legislation, and internal

In

year,

•

Labour Relations Act, 1995;

control in the areas of acquisition

independent non-executive members

•

National Qualifications Framework

management, demand management,

Act, 2008;

logistics

National Treasury Regulations

management, and assessment of SCM

the

2015/2016

financial

were appointed to the Audit and Risk
Committee. The Institute will appoint

•

an internal auditor to manage this

• Occupational Health and Safety Act,

function in 2016/2017.
Compliance with Laws and Regulations
The NIHSS is very aware of its regulatory

Preferential

Procurement

PPPFA Regulations; and

policies

•

Skills Development Act, 1998

compliance

Policy

1999;
•
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performance.

Public Finance Management Act,

all applicable laws, regulations and
own

risk

Framework Act, 2000;
•

environment and aims to incorporate
its

SCM

1993;
•

into

management,
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OUR KEY
STAKEHOLDER
RELATIONSHIPS

principle of cooperation between institutions and the establishment of communities
of scholarship in South Africa, Africa and internationally; through international
cooperation and collaboration on the basis of mutual respect; and through social
responsibility and equity as enshrined or implied in the South African Constitution
(1996). In so doing, we will help to improve the quality of education, by promoting

We

are

dependent

on

fostering

sustainable relationships with our key
stakeholders, in order to fulfil the NIHSS

leadership and partnerships throughout society and by helping to build the capability
of the state to play a developmental and transformative role, creating a better future
for all South Africans.

mandate effectively.

STAKEHOLDER VALUE ANALYSIS

Partnering and collaborating with key

The NIHSS primary beneficiaries are the South African and African PhD students

role players, researchers and students

in the HSS, the PhD mentors, and academics who serve as research leaders in the

in higher education institutions – both

various Catalytic Research Projects, Working Groups and International Collaborative

in South Africa and Africa, and in

Programmes, as well as civic organisation participating in the Humanities Hubs,

other countries of the Global South

and HSS professional associations. Ultimately, the entire HSS landscape will benefit

(including the BRICS nations) – and

from these interventions through multiplier effects. The awarding of scholarships

with potential funders will enable the

and projects always takes equity considerations into account. Table 3 lists specific

NIHSS to contribute to key national

stakeholders with whom the NIHSS seeks to work closely and efficiently, and indicates

priorities. We do this through the

the NIHSS deliverables per stakeholder group.

Table 3: NIHSS deliverables per stakeholder group
Stakeholder
South African PhD
students
APP Students

NIHSS deliverable(s)
•

Increased funding for HSS doctoral students

•

Increase in the number of non-South African doctoral students funded by the NIHSS in the HSS

•

Communities of scholarship established through mentorship and offering a communally based

Mentors

approach to doctoral support through targeted interventions, which enhance the creativity and
technical capacities of doctoral graduates
•

Collaborate in African Pathways Programme application for funding process (by screening
applications and through panel review)

CODESRIA

•

Policy frameworks developed for joint degrees within SADC and the broader continent

•

An open and dynamic process created, through which African scholars cooperate, collaborate and
assist each other (to reflect on the past, present and future of this continent)

DHET

•

Comprehensive reporting at agreed intervals

•

Performance monitoring in terms of the NIHSS mandate

•

Provision of policy advice in matters related to HSS

•

Advise the Minister of High Education and Training and government on HSS related matters

•

Increased and guided academic discourse about the crucial social issues that face us as South
African citizens (in order to help influence the character of the South African community and to
create a more humane, responsible and just society)

Doctoral School

Employees

58

•

Number of doctoral schools established and operational, providing a platform for academic
support to NIHSS-funded doctoral students

•

Favourable working conditions

•

Support for students enrolled for study

•

Support for research project leaders participating in various NIHSS programmes
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Stakeholder
Funders

NIHSS deliverable(s)
•

Potential partnership on ad-hoc projects in line with agreed upon service level agreement

•

Funding of research through the CRP

•

Administering of NIHSS scholarships and research funding through HEIs’ internal financial

HEIs

processes
•

Resources provided for better support for postgraduate students

•

Provision of increased funding encouraged for PhD and Masters students

•

Compliance with procedures preceding the disbursement of funds in line with the NIHSS mandate

•

Funding of HSS PhD students

•

Funding of NIHSS research

SAHUDA

•

Collaboration in Doctoral Schools Programme application screening through panel review

Partnering NGOs

•

Potential partnership on ad-hoc projects in line with agreed upon service-level agreement

•

Being socially responsive

•

Helping to address the socio-economic challenges facing South Africa and her citizens

•

Advising civil society on HSS-related matters; and increasing and guiding public discourse about

NSFAS
NSF

South African citizens

the crucial social issues that face us as citizens, in order to help build a better South Africa for all
citizens
BRICS partner
countries

•

SABTT engagement with other official think tanks from the BRICS countries through the BTTC.

•

A close working relationship maintained by SABTT with government to align SABTT with

Department of
International
Relations and

government policy

Cooperation (DIRCO)
HSRC

•

Incubation of the BRICS Think Tank, BRICS and related international policy matters on behalf of
South Africa

BRICS Think Tank

•

Coordination and management by SABTT of all BTTC-related activities.

Council

•

(The BTTC is a network of five official Think Tanks from the BRICS countries)

•

Provision of sound and independent policy advice. (SABTT is directly)

South African
Parliament
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REPORT OF THE AUDITOR-GENERAL
INTRODUCTION
1. I

have

audited

AUDITOR-GENERAL’S
RESPONSIBILITY
the

the

Humanities

I have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for

financial

statements of the National Institute
for

5. I believe that the audit evidence

and

Social

3. My responsibility is to express
an

opinion

on

these

financial

Sciences as set out on pages 67 to

statements based on my audit. I

99, which comprise the statement

conducted my audit in accordance

of financial position as at 31 March

with

International

Standards

2016, the statement of financial

on

performance, statement of changes

require that I comply with ethical

Auditing.

Those

standards

in net assets, cash flow statement

requirements, and plan and perform

and the statement of comparison

the audit to obtain reasonable

of budget and actual amounts for

assurance

the year then ended, as well as the

financial statements are free from

notes, comprising a summary of

material misstatement.

about

whether

the

4. An

ACCOUNTING AUTHORITY’S
RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

audit

OPINION
6. In

my

opinion,

the

financial

statements present fairly, in all
material

respects,

the

financial

position of the NIHSS as at 31
March

2016

and

its

financial

performance and cash flows for
the year then ended, in accordance
with SA Standards of GRAP and
the requirements of the Higher

significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information.

my audit opinion.

involves

performing

procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures
in the financial statements. The
procedures selected depend on the

Education Act 101, 1997.

REPORT ON OTHER
LEGAL AND REGULATORY
REQUIREMENTS

auditor’s judgement, including the
2. The

board

of

directors,

which

assessment of the risks of material

7. In accordance with the Public Audit

constitutes the accounting authority

misstatement

financial

Act of South Africa, 2004 (Act No.

is responsible for the preparation

statements, whether due to fraud

25 of 2004) and the general notice

and fair presentation of these

or error. In making those risk

issued in terms thereof, I have a

financial statements in accordance

assessments, the auditor considers

responsibility

with South African Standards of

internal control relevant to the entity’s

on

of

the

the

to

report

reported

findings

performance

Accounting

preparation and fair presentation

information against predetermined

Practice (SA standards of GRAP)

financial statements in order to

objectives of selected objectives

and the requirements of the Higher

design audit procedures that are

presented in the annual performance

Education Act 101, 1997, and for such

appropriate in the circumstances,

report, compliance with legislation

internal control as the accounting

but

of

and internal control. The objective of

authority

expressing

the

my tests was to identify reportable

necessary to enable the preparation

effectiveness of the entity’s internal

findings as described under each

of financial statements that are

control. An audit also includes

subheading but not to gather

free from material misstatement,

evaluating

whether due to fraud or error.

of accounting policies used and

evidence to express assurance on

the reasonableness of accounting

these matters. Accordingly, I do not

estimates made by management,

express an opinion or conclusion on

as well as evaluating the overall

these matters.

General

Recognised

other

determines

is

not

for

presentation

the

an

purpose

opinion

the

of

on

appropriateness

the

financial

statements.
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REPORT OF THE AUDITOR-GENERAL
PREDETERMINED
OBJECTIVES

•

evidence about the usefulness and
reliability of the reported performance
information of the following selected
objectives presented in the annual
performance report of the Institute
for the year ended 31 March 2016:
Strategic Objective 1: Provide doctoral
scholarships

for

postgraduate

students studying in the humanities
and social sciences in South Africa on
pages 20 to 26
•

Strategic Objective 2: Dynamise the
the humanities and social sciences
in South Africa through a range of
Catalytic Projects and Humanities
Hubs on pages 27 to 31
Strategic Objective 3: Promote the
integrity, reputation and recognition
of

the

humanities

and

social

sciences within the higher education
community,

the

science

and

technology community, and society
on pages 33 to 39
•

Strategic

Objective

4:

Advance

postgraduate scholarship through a
range a innovations and collaborative
supervision of doctoral students on
pages 40 to 42
•

Strategic
and

Objective

strengthen

partnerships

with

5:

networks

Build
and

organisations

working in areas related to the
humanities and social sciences on
pages 43
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6:

Foster

between South Africa and countries
of the Global South, including Brazil,
India and China on pages 44 to 46
9. I

evaluated

the

the

reported

usefulness

of

performance

information to determine whether
it was presented in accordance
with the National Treasury’s annual
reporting principles and whether
the reported performance was
consistent

with

the

planned

objectives. I further performed tests
to determine whether indicators

fields of research and teaching in

•

Objective

international research collaborations

8. I performed procedures to obtain

•

Strategic

and targets were well defined,
verifiable, specific, measurable, time
bound and relevant, as required by
the National Treasury’s Framework
for

managing

programme

performance information (FMPPI).
10. I assessed the reliability of the
reported performance information
to determine whether it was valid,

RELIABILITY OF REPORTED
PERFORMANCE
INFORMATION
12. The FMPPI requires auditees to
have appropriate systems to collect,
collate, verify and store performance
information

to

ensure

reliable

reporting of actual achievements
against planned objectives, indicators
and targets. Adequate and reliable
corroborating

evidence

could

not be provided for the reported
achievements

against

planned

targets of 33% of the indicators.

Strategic Objective 6: Foster
international research
collaborations between South
Africa and countries of the
Global South, including Brazil,
India and China.

RELIABILITY OF REPORTED
PERFORMANCE
INFORMATION

accurate and complete.
13. The FMPPI requires auditees to
11. The material findings in respect

have appropriate systems to collect,

of the selected objectives are as

collate, verify and store performance

follows:

information

Strategic Objective 5: Build
and strengthen networks
and
partnerships
with
organisations
working
in areas related to the
humanities
and
social
sciences.

to

ensure

reliable

reporting of actual achievements
against

planned

objectives,

indicators and targets. The reported
performance information was not
reliable when compared to the
evidence provided for 66% of the
indicators.
14. I did not identify any material
findings
and

on

reliability

the
of

usefulness
the

reported

performance information for the
following objectives:

SECTION F | OUR FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE FOR 2015/2016

REPORT OF THE AUDITOR-GENERAL
•

Strategic

Objective

doctoral

1:

Provide

scholarships

for

postgraduate students studying in

•

reported performance information.

ACHIEVEMENT OF
PLANNED TARGETS

Strategic Objective 2: Dynamise the

17. Refer to the annual performance

fields of research and teaching in

of each financial year, submit an

report on pages 15 to 19 for

the humanities and social sciences

annual report to the Minister which

information on the achievement of

in South Africa through a range of

includes a financial statement on

planned targets for the year. This

Catalytic Projects and Humanities

the performance of its functions

information should be considered

Hubs on pages.

during the preceding year. The

in the context of the material

annual report for year ended 31

findings on the usefulness of the

March 2016 where not submitted

reported performance information

within three months.

Strategic
the

Objective

integrity,

3:

Promote

reputation

and

social sciences within the higher
education community, the science
and technology community, and
society.

20. As required by the Higher Education
act section 38I, the board must,
within three months after the end

in paragraphs 8 to 16 of this report.

recognition of the humanities and

•

SUBMISSION OF ANNUAL
REPORT

in South Africa.

the humanities and social sciences

•

the usefulness and reliability of the

COMPLIANCE WITH
LEGISLATION

INTERNAL CONTROL
21. I

considered

internal

control

relevant to my audit of the financial
18. I performed procedures to obtain

statements, annual performance

evidence that the Institute had
Advance

report

complied with applicable legislation

postgraduate scholarship through

legislation. The matters reported

regarding financial matters, financial

a

and

below are limited to the significant

management and other related

collaborative supervision of doctoral

internal control deficiencies that

matters. My material findings on

students.

resulted in the findings on the

compliance with specific matters

annual performance report and

in key legislation, as set out in the

the findings on compliance with

general notice issued in terms of the

legislation included in this report.

Strategic
range

Objective
a

4:

innovations

ADDITIONAL MATTER

and

compliance

with

PAA, are as follows:
15. I draw attention to the following
matter:

ADJUSTMENT OF MATERIAL
MISSTATEMENTS

ANNUAL PERFORMANCE
AGAINST PREDETERMINED
OBJECTIVES
19. The Board of the Institute did not

LEADERSHIP
22. Management and the board did
not exercise adequate oversight
responsibility

in

the

areas

performance

reporting.

of
The

16. I identified material misstatements

keep accounting records that fairly

in the annual performance report

National Institute for the Humanities

present the performance against

submitted

These

and Social Sciences leadership is

predetermined objectives at year

material misstatements were on the

required to improve on oversight

end as required by section 38I(d)

reported performance information

regarding

of the higher education act 101 of

of Strategic Objectives 2 and 4.

applicable laws and regulation, and

1997 resulting in some indicators

As

performance reporting.

not being verifiable.

for

auditing.

management

subsequently

compliance

with

corrected the misstatements, I did
not identify any material findings on

Annual Report 2015 / 2016

63

the

REPORT OF THE AUDITOR-GENERAL
FINANCIAL AND
PERFORMANCE
MANAGEMENT
23. The Institute did not have a proper
system of record management to
ensure that information is easily
retrievable and available for audit
purposes

timeously

to

support

performance reporting.

GOVERNANCE

Auditor-General
Pretoria
16 September 2016

24. The board has not established and
implemented a risk management
system and governance committee
charters to enable understanding
of the functions of the governance
committees. However, it has been
confirmed with management that
these matters will be reviewed by
the board in the 2016/17 financial
year.
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The financial statements set out on pages 66 to 97, which have been prepared on the going concern basis, were approved by
the Board on 26 September 2016 and were signed on its behalf by:

Dr Sarah Mosoetsa

Prof. Aristides Sitas

Chief Executive Officer (CEO)

Board - Chairman
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AS AT 31 MARCH 2016

Notes

R

R

2016

2015 *

Assets
Non-Current Assets
Property, plant and equipment

4

5 289 664

217 117

Intangible assets

5

101 576

59 954

5 391 240

277 071

48 747

4 262

Current Assets
Inventories
Prepayments

6

459 022

-

Receivables from exchange transactions

7

697 942

10 129

Receivables from non-exchange transactions

7

40 848 471

55 121 917

Cash and cash equivalents

8

51 318 392

3 174 929

Total Assets

93 372 574

58 311 237

98 763 814

58 588 308

100 173

129 960

1 782 925

1 015 764

Liabilities
Current Liabilities
Operating lease liability
Trade and other payables from exchange transactions

9

Trade and other payables from non-exchange transactions

9

73 371 312

41 013 191

Total Liabilities

75 254 410

42 158 915

Net Assets

23 509 404

16 429 393

Reserves

23 509 404

16 429 393

Net Assets

23 509 404

16 429 393

* The NIHSS was established on 5 December 2013.
The financial period is over a 16 month period from 5 December 2013 to 31 March 2015.
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

Notes

R

R

2016

2015 *

Revenue
Revenue from exchange transactions

399 537

93 024

399 537

93 024

82 936 339

38 822 359

Investment revenue
Total revenue from exchange transactions
Revenue from non-exchange transactions
Transfer revenue
Government Funding
Total revenue from non-exchange transactions

82 936 339

38 822 359

10

83 335 876

38 915 383

Employee related costs

11

10 561 539

3 892 963

Depreciation and amortisation

4,5

692 350

40 027

2 253 997

388 106

Total revenue
Expenditure

Rent and Utilities (lease rental on operating lease)
Project expenses

12

59 114 131

14 800 509

General expenses

13

3 633 848

3 364 385

76 255 865

22 485 990

Total expenditure
Gain (loss) on disposal of assets and liabilities
Surplus for the year

7 080 011

16 429 393

* The NIHSS was established on 5 December 2013.
The financial period is over a 16 month period from 5 December 2013 to 31 March 2015.

Annual Report 2015 / 2016

67

CASH FLOW STATEMENT

Note

R

R

2016

2015 *

Cash flows from operating activities
Receipts
Government funding

120 807 823

Interest income

14

24 699 242

355 971

93 024

121 163 794

24 792 266

Payments
Project expenses

(30 044 131)

(14 800 509)

Compensation of employees and Board members

(10 412 412)

(4 000 128)

Payments to suppliers

(26 757 268)

(2 499 602)

(67 213 811)

(21 300 239)

15

53 949 983

3 492 027

Purchase of property, plant and equipment

4

(5 646 353)

(249 133)

Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment

4

-

-

Purchase of other intangible assets

5

Net cash flows from operating activities
Cash flows from investing activities

(160 167)

(67 965)

Net cash flows from investing activities

(5 806 520)

(317 098)

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents

48 143 463

3 174 929

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

8

3 174 929

-

51 318 392

3 174 929

* The NIHSS was established on 5 December 2013.
The financial period is over a 16 month period from 5 December 2013 to 31 March 2015.
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

R
Reserves
Balance at 05 December 2013

-

Net Surplus for the year ended 31 March 2015 *

16 429 393

Balance at 31 March 2015

16 429 393

Balance at 1 April 2015

16 429 393

Net Surplus for the year ended 31 March 2016
Balance at 31 March 2016

7 080 011
23 509 404

* The NIHSS was established on 5 December 2013.
The financial period is over a 16 month period from 5 December 2013 to 31 March 2015.
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STATEMENT OF COMPARISON OF BUDGET AND ACTUAL AMOUNTS

R

R

R

Actual

Variance

Approved
budget

Notes

Statement of Financial Performance
Revenue
Revenue from exchange transactions
Investment revenue

-

399 537

399 537

Total revenue from exchange transactions

-

399 537

399 537

117 441 107

82 936 339

(34 504 768)

20

Revenue from non-exchange transactions
Transfer revenue
Government Funding

20

Total revenue from non-exchange transactions

117 441 107

82 936 339

(34 504 768)

Total revenue

117 441 107

83 335 876

(34 105 231)

15 130 482

10 561 539

4 568 943

20

-

692 350

(692 350)

20

3 000 000

2 253 997

746 003

20

Project expenses

94 844 049

59 114 131

35 729 918

20

General expenses

4 466 576

3 633 848

832 728

20

Total expenditure

117 441 107

76 255 865

41 185 242

Operating surplus

-

7 080 11

7 080 011

Gain on disposal of assets and liabilities

-

-

-

Surplus for the year

-

7 080 011

7 080 011

Expenditure
Employee related costs
Depreciation and amortisation
Rent and Utilities (lease rental on operating lease)
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES
1. PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with, and comply with, effective Standards of Generally Recognised
Accounting Practice (GRAP) including any interpretations, guidelines and directives issued by the Accounting Standards Board.
The implementation of new GRAP standards has not resulted in any change in accounting policy.
These financial statements have been prepared on an accrual basis of accounting and are in accordance with historical cost
convention as the basis of measurement, unless specified otherwise.
A summary of the significant accounting policies, which have been consistently applied in the preparation of these financial
statements, are disclosed below.

1.1 PRESENTATION CURRENCY
These financial statements are presented in South African Rand, which is the functional currency of the NIHSS.

1.2 GOING CONCERN ASSUMPTION
These financial statements have been prepared based on the expectation that the NIHSS will continue to operate as a going
concern for at least the next 12 months.

1.3 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Property, plant and equipment are initially measured at cost. Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the
acquisition of the asset. Purchased software that is integral to the functionality of the related equipment is capitalised as part of
that equipment.
The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised as an asset when:
•

it is probable that future economic benefits or service potential associated with the item will flow to the NIHSS; and

•

the cost of the item can be measured reliably.

Property, plant and equipment are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses.
Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on the straight line basis over their expected useful lives to their estimated
residual value.
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The useful lives of items of property, plant and equipment have been assessed as follows:
Item

Average Useful life

Depreciation Rates

Office furniture and fittings

9 - 11 years

9% - 11%

Office equipment

4 - 6 years

16% - 25%

Computer equipment

2 - 4 years

25% - 50%

Leasehold improvements

over the lease term (3 years)

33%

The residual value, the useful life and depreciation method of each asset are reviewed at least at each reporting date. If the
expectations differ from previous estimates, the change is accounted for as a change in accounting estimate.
Reviewing the useful life of an asset on an annual basis does not require the NIHSS to amend the previous estimate unless
expectations differ from the previous estimate.
NIHSS derecognises its item of property, plant equipment and/or significant part of an asset upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits or service potential can be derived from the asset
The gain or loss arising from the derecognition of an item of property, plant and equipment is included in surplus or deficit
when the item is derecognised. The gain or loss arising from the derecognition of an item of property, plant and equipment is
determined as the difference between the net disposal proceeds, if any, and the carrying amount of the item.
Where the carrying amount of an item of property, plant and equipment is greater than its estimated recoverable service amount,
it is written down immediately to its recoverable amount (i.e. impairment losses are recognised).
Impairment of Assets
Impairment is the loss in the future economic benefits or service potential of an asset over and above the systematic recognition
of the loss through depreciation or amortisation.
Assets are annually assessed, by considering internal and external factors where there is an indication of impairment.
If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated at the higher of fair value less cost to sell and its
value in use.
Where the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable service amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written
down to its recoverable service amount.

1.4 INTANGIBLE ASSETS
An intangible asset is initially measured at cost.
An intangible asset is recognised when:
•

it is probable that the expected future economic benefits or service potential that are attributable to the asset will flow to the
NIHSS; and

•

the cost or fair value of the asset can be measured reliably.

Intangible assets are subsequently measured at cost less any accumulated amortisation and any impairment losses.
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The amortisation period and the amortisation method for intangible assets are reviewed at each reporting date.
The useful lives of intangible assets have been assessed as follows:
Item
Computer software

Useful life

Depreciation Rate

1-2 years

50% - 100%

The estimated useful lives of intangible assets are reviewed at the end of each annual reporting period.
The gain or loss is the difference between the net disposal proceeds, if any, and the carrying amount. It is recognised in surplus
or deficit when the asset is derecognised.
Where the carrying amount of an intangible asset is greater than its estimated recoverable service amount, it is written down
immediately to its recoverable amount (i.e. impairment losses are recognised).

1.5 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or a residual interest
of another entity.
Initial recognition
The NIHSS recognises a financial asset or a financial liability in its statement of financial position when the entity becomes a party
to the contractual provisions of the instrument.
Initial measurement
Financial assets and financial liabilities are measured at fair value plus, in case of a financial asset or financial liability not
subsequently measured at fair value, transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial
instrument.

1.5.1 Financial assets
All financial assets of the NIHSS are categorised as Cash and cash equivalents, and Receivables. The classification depends on the
nature and purpose of the financial assets and is determined at the time of initial recognition.
Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents are stated at amortised cost, which, due to their short-term nature, closely approximate their fair
value.
Financial assets at amortised cost
Trade receivables, loans, and other receivables that have fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market
are classified as 'financial assets at amortised cost'. These financial assets are measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method less any impairment. Interest income is recognised by applying the effective interest rate.
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Effective interest method
The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset and of allocating interest income
over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the
expected life of the financial asset, or, where appropriate, a shorter period.
Impairment of financial assets
Financial assets are assessed for indicators of impairment at each year-end.
Financial assets are impaired where there is objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events that occurred after the
initial recognition of the financial asset, the estimated future cash flows of the investment have been impacted. For financial
assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of the impairment is the difference between the asset's carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows, discounted at the original effective interest rate.
The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the exception
of trade receivables where the carrying amount is reduced through the use of an allowance account. When a trade receivable is
uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited
against the allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount of the allowance account are recognised in the surplus or deficit.
Derecognition
A financial asset shall be derecognised when NIHSS realises the contractual rights to benefits specified in the contract, the
rights expire and NIHSS surrenders those rights, or loses control of the contractual rights that comprise a financial assets. On
derecognition, the difference between the carrying amount of the financial asset and the sum of the proceeds received shall be
recognised in the net surplus or deficit for the period.

1.5.2 Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities include Trade and other payables from exchange transactions.
All financial liabilities of the NIHSS are classified as financial liabilities at amortised cost. The classification depends on the nature
and purpose of the financial liabilities and is determined at the time of initial recognition.
Other financial liabilities
Other financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value, net of transaction costs.
Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, with interest expense
recognised on an effective yield basis.
The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest expense
over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments through the
expected life of the financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period.
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Derecognition
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or expires. On
derecognition, the difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability and the amount paid is included in the net
surplus or deficit for the period.
Offsetting Financial instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset if there is any intention to either settle on a net basis, or realise the asset and
settle the liability simultaneously and a legally enforceable right to set off exists

1.6 TAX
No provision has been made for taxation, as the NIHSS is exempt from income tax in terms of Section 10 of the Income Tax Act,
1962 (Act 58 of 1962).

1.7 LEASES
A lease is classified as a finance lease if it transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership. A lease is
classified as an operating lease if it does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership.
Finance leases refer to a contract that transfers the risks, rewards, rights and obligations incidental to ownership to the lessee
and is recorded as a purchase of propery, plant and equipment by means of long-term borrowing. All other leases are classified
as operating leases.
Payments made under operating leases (leases other than finance leases) are charged to the Statement of Financial Performance
on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease. When an operating lease is terminated before the lease period has expired,
any payment required to be made to the lessor by way of penalty is recognised as an expense in the period in which termination
takes place.

1.7.1 Finance leases - lessee
Finance leases are recognised as assets and liabilities in the Statement of Financial Position at amounts equal to the fair value
of the leased property or, if lower, the present value of the minimum lease payments. The corresponding liability to the lessor is
included in the Statement of Financial Position as a finance lease obligation.
Minimum lease payments are apportioned between the finance charge and reduction of the outstanding liability. The finance charge
is allocated to each period during the lease term so as to produce a constant periodic rate on the remaining balance of the liability.

1.7.2 Operating leases - lessee
Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term. The difference between the
amounts recognised as an expense and the contractual payments are recognised as an operating lease asset or liability.

1.8 INVENTORIES
Inventories consist of consumables on hand at the reporting date and are measured at cost. An individual inventory item whose
cost does not exceed R1 000 is recognised, on acquisition, in surplus or deficit.
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Inventories are subsequently measured at the lower of cost and net replacement value.

1.9 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
The cost of employee benefits is recognised during the period in which the employee renders the related service. Employee
entitlements are recognised when they accrue to employees. A provision is made for the estimated liability as a result of services
rendered by employees up to the reporting date.
Termination benefits are recognised and expensed only when the payment is made.
Liabilities for annual leave are recognised as they accrue to employees. The NIHSS recognises the leave obligation during the
vesting period based on the best available estimate of the accumulated leave expected to vest. The liability is based on the total
amount of leave days due to employees at year end and also on the total remuneration package of the employee. The leave
liability is recognised as an accrual.
No provision has been made for retirement benefits as the NIHSS does not provide for retirement benefits for its employees.

1.10 PROVISIONS AND CONTINGENCIES
Provisions are recognised when NIHSS has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past event; and it is probable
that an outflow of economic benefits or service potential will be required or can be made to settle the obligation.
Provisions are measured as management’s best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the obligation at the reporting
date and are discounted to present value where the amount of the provision is material.
Contingent liabilities are possible obligations whose existence will be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of an
uncertain future event not wholly within the control of NIHSS. Contingent liabilities are not recognised but are disclosed in the
notes to these financial statements, unless the possibility of an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits or service
potential is remote.

1.11 REVENUE
Revenue is recognised when it is probable that future economic benefits will flow to the NIHSS and these benefits can be
measured reliably.

1.11.1 Revenue from exchange transactions
Revenue from exchange transactions is recognised when it is probable that future economic benefits or service potential will flow
to the NIHSS and these benefits can be measured reliably. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received
or receivable.
Interest income is accrued on a time proportionate basis, taking into account the principal outstanding and effective interest rate
over the period to maturity.

1.11.2 Revenue from non-exchange transactions
Non-exchange revenue transactions result in resources being received by the NIHSS usually in accordance with a binding
arrangement.
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When the NIHSS receives resources as a result of a non-exchange transaction, it recognises an asset and revenue in the period
that the arrangement becomes binding and when it is probable that the NIHSS will receive economic benefits or service potential
and it can make a reliable measure of the resources transferred.
Where the resources transferred to the NIHSS are subject to the fulfilment of specific conditions, it recognises an asset and a
corresponding liability. As and when the conditions are fulfilled, the liability is reduced and revenue is recognised.
The asset and the corresponding revenue are measured on the basis of the fair value of the asset on initial recognition.
The following sources of receipts are considered revenue from non-exchange transactions:
•

Department of Higher Education and Training (DHET) - Operations Funding
The MTEF (Medium Term Expenditure Framwork - 3 year rolling Government budget) allocated funding received from DHET.
The funding for the NIHSS operations is not conditional and revenue is recognised when the funds are received.

•

National Skills Fund (NSF)
The NSF funds all the NIHSS Award projects (including the African Pathway Scholarship and BRICS ThinkTank).
The funds for the projects are conditional and revenue is only recognised to the extent that expenditure is incurred.

•

National Student Financial Aid Scheme (NSFAS)
NSFAS makes loans and grants bursaries to academically able but financially disadvantaged students, to enable them to meet
the costs of studying at higher education institutions.

The NIHSS through the NSF appropriates and pays funds to NSFAS to implement and administer student programmes on behalf
of the NIHSS, per contract terms. The funds are kept by NSFAS in an interest bearing call account.
NSFAS keeps the accounting records of the funds.
The funds are rolled over each financial year, any unspent funds are refunded to the NIHSS at contract end.
The final bank balance of the NSFAS is recognised as a receivable from the NSFAS and Deferred revenue (liability).
The funds for these loans/bursaries are conditional and revenue is only recognised to the extent that expenditure is incurred.

1.12 FRUITLESS AND WASTEFUL EXPENDITURE
Fruitless expenditure means expenditure which was made in vain and would have been avoided had reasonable care been
exercised.
All expenditure relating to fruitless and wasteful expenditure is recognised as an expense in the statement of financial performance
in the year that the expenditure was incurred. The expenditure is classified in accordance with the nature of the expense, and
where recovered, it is subsequently accounted for as revenue in the Statement of Financial Performance.

1.13 IRREGULAR EXPENDITURE
Irregular expenditure is expenditure other than unauthorised expenditure, incurred in contravention of or that is not in
accordance with the NIHSS supply chain policy.
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1.14 RESERVES
Any surplus funds at the end of the financial year are retained and utilised for project expenditure in the new financial year.

1.15 RELATED PARTIES
Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability to control the other party or exercise significant influence over the
other party in making financial and operating decisions or if the related party entity or another entity are subject to common control.
Where such a situation exists, the nature and type of transactions and relationships between parties are disclosed in the notes
to these financial statements.

1.16 COMMITMENTS
Commitments are disclosed where the NIHSS has, in the normal course of its operations, entered into a contractual agreement
with third parties for project expenses which are yet due for payment.
Commitments are measured at the amount the entity would pay to settle the obligation, to a third party at reporting date.
Commitments are included in the disclosure note to these financial statements.

1.17 REPORTING PERIOD
The reporting period for the 2015/2016 financial year is over a 12 month period.

1.18 COMPARATIVES
The NIHSS was established on 5 December 2013. The financial period for the 2014/2015 financial year is over a 16 month period
from 5 December 2013 to 31 March 2015.

1.19 BUDGET INFORMATION
The approved budget covers the fiscal period from 1 April 2015 to 31 March 2016.
These financial statements and the approved budget are on the same basis of accounting, therefore a comparison of actual
performance with budgeted amounts for the reporting period has been included in the Statement of Comparison of Budget and
Actual Amounts.

1.20 EVENTS AFTER REPORTING DATE
Events after reporting date are those events, both favourable and unfavourable, that occur between the reporting date and the
date when the financial statements are approved. Two types of events can be identified:
•

those that provide evidence of conditions that existed at the reporting date (adjusting events after the reporting date); and

•

those that are indicative of conditions that arose after the reporting date (non-adjusting events after the reporting date).

NIHSS will adjust the amount recognised in the financial statements to reflect adjusting events after the reporting date once the
event occurred.
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NIHSS will disclose the nature of the event and an estimate of its financial effect or a statement that such estimate cannot be
made in respect of all material non-adjusting events, where non-disclosure could influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of the financial statements.

1.21 SIGNIFICANT JUDGEMENTS AND SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
In preparing these financial statements, management is required to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the
amounts represented in these financial statements and related disclosures. Use of available information and the application of
judgement is inherent in the formation of estimates. Actual results in the future could differ from these estimates which may be
material to these financial statements.
The following are the key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at year end, that
have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial
year:
Estimation of useful lives and Residual value
The NIHSS reviews the estimated useful lives of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets at each reporting date.
Impairment of assets
NIHSS assesses its receivables for impairment at the end of each reporting period. In determining whether an impairment loss
should be recorded in surplus or deficit, management makes judgements as to whether there is observable data indicating a
measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows from receivables.
Segment Reporting
Management have assessed that the NIHSS operates as one segment both geographically and in service offering.
Therefore, Management have not divided the financial information into different segments as required by GRAP 18.
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NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
2. GENERAL INFORMATION
The creation of the National Institute for the Humanities and Social Sciences (NIHSS) to dynamise these fields of study in South
Africa's Higher Education system has emerged out of a wide ranging consultative process inaugurated by the Minister of Higher
Education and Training, Dr. Blade Nzimande.
In 2010, the Minister of Higher Education and Training appointed a Task Team to develop a Charter on Humanities and Social
Sciences. This was aimed at affirming the importance of humanities and social sciences as forms of scholarship.   The final
Report of the Charter was submitted to the Minister on 4 August 2011. One of the key recommendations in the Report was the
establishment of an institute for the promotion of humanities and social sciences.
Guided by the overwhelming support of the recommendations from the stakeholders across the entire cultural divide and
the establishment of the institute in particular, the Minister then provided for establishment of the National Institute for the
Humanities and Social Sciences (NIHSS) through the Government Gazette Notice No. 37118 on 5 December 2013.
The scope of the NIHSS is that of advancing and coordinating scholarship, research and ethical practice in the fields of the
Humanities and the Social Science within and through the existing public Universities and those to be established or declared in
future as public Universities.
The functions of the NIHSS is to:
a) provide services to the higher education sphere within the Humanities and Social Sciences
b) advance learning within its specific scope or application by ensuring collaboration, co-ordination or collaboration and coordination of the work of higher education institutions; and
c) advise the Minister of Higher Education and Training on matters relating to its specific scope or application, or higher education
generally.
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NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
3. NEW STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS
3.1 STANDARDS ISSUED, BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
At the date of authorisation of these financial statements, there are standards and interpretations in issue but not yet effective.  
These include the following standards and interpretations that are applicable to the NIHSS and may have an impact on future
financial statements:
Standard/ Interpretation:

•

GRAP 20: Related parties

Effective date:

Expected impact:

Not yet effective

This standard prescribes the disclosure of information
relevant to draw attention to the possibility that the entity's
financial position and surplus / deficit may have been affected
by the existence of related parties.
It is not expected that this standard will significantly impact
future disclosures.

•

GRAP 108: Statutory

Not yet effective

Receivables

This standard prescribes the accounting requirements for the
recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of
statutory receivables.
It is not expected that this standard will significantly impact
future disclosures.

3.2 STANDARDS NOT YET EFFECTIVE OR RELEVANT
The following standards and interpretations that have been issued but are not yet effective are not applicable to the NIHSS and
will not have an impact on future financial statements:
Standard/ Interpretation:

Effective date:

Expected impact:

•

Not yet effective

No significant impact on future disclosures

Not yet effective

No significant impact on future disclosures

Not yet effective

No significant impact on future disclosures

GRAP 32: Service
Concession
Arrangements: Grantor

•

GRAP 109: Accounting by
Principals and Agents

•

IGRAP17: Service
Concession Arrangements
Where a Grantor
Controls a Significant
Residual Interest in an Asset

* The NIHSS was established on 5 December 2013.
The financial period is over a 16 month period from 5 December 2013 to 31 March 2015.
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4. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
2016
Cost

2015

Accumulated

Carrying

depreciation

value

Cost

Accumulated

Carrying

depreciation

value

Office furniture and
fittings

2 132 401

(75 381)

2 057 020

-

-

-

Office equipment

433 728

(34 438)

399 290

22 133

(689)

21 444

Computer equipment

558 131

(147 862)

410 269

227 000

(31 327)

195 673

improvements

2 771 226

(348 141)

2 423 085

-

-

-

Total

5 895 486

(605 822)

5 289 664

249 133

(32 016)

217 117

Leasehold

Reconciliation of property, plant and equipment - 2016
Opening

Additions

balance
Office furniture and fittings
Office equipment
Computer equipment

Depreciation

Total

-

2 132 401

-

(75 381)

2 057 020

21 444

411 594

-

(33 749)

399 289

195 673

331 132

-

(116 535)

410 270

-

2 771 226

-

(348 141)

2 423 085

217 117

5 646 353

-

(573 806)

5 289 664

Leasehold improvements
Total

Disposals

Reconciliation of property, plant and equipment - 2015*
Opening

Additions

balance

Disposals

Depreciation

Total

Office furniture and fittings

-

-

-

-

-

Office equipment

-

22 133

-

(689)

21 444

Computer equipment

-

227 000

-

(31 327)

195 673

Leasehold improvements

-

-

-

-

-

Total

-

249 133

-

(32 016)

217 117

2016

2015*

Gross Carrying Value
Office furniture and fittings
Office equipment
Computer equipment

2 057 020

-

399 289

21 444

410 270

195 673

Leasehold improvements

2 423 085

-

Total

5 289 664

217 117

* The NIHSS was established on 5 December 2013.
The financial period is over a 16 month period from 5 December 2013 to 31 March 2015.
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NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
5. INTANGIBLE ASSETS
2016
Cost

Computer software

2015

Accumulated

Carrying

amortisation

value

228 132

(126 556)

Cost

101 576

67 965

Accumulated

Carrying

amortisation

value

(8 011)

59 954

Reconciliation of intangible assets - 2016
Opening

Additions

balance
Computer software

59 954

160 167

Amortisation

(118 545)

Total

101 576

Reconciliation of intangible assets - 2015
Opening

Additions

balance
Computer software

-

67 965

Amortisation

(8 011)
2016

Total

59 954
2015

Gross Carrying Value
Computer software

101 576

59 954

6. PREPAYMENTS
2016

2015

Assets paid in advance

236 749

-

Rental paid in advance

207 904

-

Warranty prepayment
Total

14 369

-

459 022

-

* The NIHSS was established on 5 December 2013.
The financial period is over a 16 month period from 5 December 2013 to 31 March 2015.
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7. RECEIVABLES
2016

2015*

Receivables from exchange transactions
Interest receivable

53 695

10 129

Other receivables

644 247

-

697 942

10 129

DHET receivable (Operations)

6 756 009

14 108 726

DHET receivable (Awards NSF)

14 756 584

35 740 000

DHET receivable (Scholarships NSFAS)

11 723 378

5 273 191

7 612 500

-

40 848 471

55 121 917

41 546 413

55 132 046

Receivables from non-exchange transactions

NSF additional receivable (BRICS ThinkTank)
Total Receivables
The DHET receivable is the remaining funds due to the NIHSS from DHET.

8. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
2016

2015*

Cash and cash equivalents consist of:
NIHSS Operating Bank Account

11 284 369

3 174 929

NIHSS NSF Bank Account

40 031 694

-

Cash on hand
Total

2 329

-

51 318 392

3 174 929

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash held by NIHSS. The carrying amount of these
assets approximates their fair values.

* The NIHSS was established on 5 December 2013.
The financial period is over a 16 month period from 5 December 2013 to 31 March 2015.
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NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
9. PAYABLES
2016

2015

Trade and other payables from exchange transactions
Trade payables

1 459 933

908 159

322 992

107 605

1 782 925

1 015 764

Trade payables (NSF)

51 002 228

35 740 000

Trade payables (NSFAS)

14 756 584

5 273 191

Accrued leave pay

The carrying amount of trade and other payables approximate their fair value due to the
relatively short-term maturity of these financial liabilities.
Trade and other payables from non-exchange transactions

Trade payables (NSF Additional for BRICS ThinkTank)
Total Payables

7 612 500

-

73 371 312

41 013 191

75 154 237

42 028 955

10. REVENUE
2016
Investment revenue - Interest

2015

399 537

93 024

Government Funding

82 936 339

38 822 359

Total

83 335 876

38 915 383

399 537

93 024

Department of Higher Education and Training (DHET) - Operations Funding

23 822 207

26 095 550

National Skills Fund (NSF)

30 044 132

-

National Student Financial Aid Scheme (NSFAS)

29 070 000

12 726 809

Total Government Funding

82 936 339

38 822 359

The amount included in revenue arising from exchanges of goods or services is as
follows:
Investment revenue - Interest

The amount included in revenue arising from non-exchange transactions is as
follows:
Transfer revenue (Government Funding)
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11. EMPLOYEE RELATED COSTS
2016
Basic salaries

2015*

10 218 496

3 035 987

UIF

30 154

14 074

SDL

97 501

30 360

-

687 666

Project reimbursements
Per diem
Accrued leave pay
Total

-

17 272

215 388

107 604

10 561 539

3 892 963

12. PROJECT EXPENSES
2016

2015*

Catalytic Projects

8 296 404

1 125 600

Heritage Hubs

1 616 667

500 000

BRICS Collaboration

3 193 499

-

Pan African South Collaboration

2 042 586

-

432 563

448 100

1 834 572

-

Working Groups

746 500

-

BRICS ThinkTank

923 487

-

2 710 604

-

434 954

-

22 231 836

2 073 700

7 812 295

-

Awards

Awards
Evaluation Panels and Award Ceremony

Emeriti Professors
Workshop Costs (project)
Total Awards
African Pathways (NSF funded scholarships)
Scholarships (NSFAS)

29 070 000

12 726 809

Total Scholarships

36 882 295

12 726 809

Total Project expenses

59 114 131

14 800 509

* The NIHSS was established on 5 December 2013.
The financial period is over a 16 month period from 5 December 2013 to 31 March 2015.
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NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
13. GENERAL EXPENSES
2016

2015

Admin Fees

629 454

239 838

Advertising and Promotions

244 076

113 370

Bank Charges

33 538

9 230

Board Member Emoluments

66 261

107 165

Cleaning

27 772

-

288 913

1 581 003

12 897

16 238

6 213

-

Consulting Fees
Courier and Postages
Equipment Rental (lease rental on operating lease)
Legal Fees

382 576

-

Meetings Costs

13 960

-

Printing and Stationary

90 218

21 201

Rates and Taxes

34 918

-

Repairs and Maintenance

12 899

2 609

529 855

103 343

Staff Refreshments

48 333

500

Staff Training

21 510

37 600

Staff Recruitment

Start up Costs
Supplies and Services
Telephone and Fax
Travel & Accommodation
Warranty Costs
Workshop Costs (operational)
Total

-

1 024

554 422

82 384

83 623

7 037

314 175

968 710

13 090

-

225 145

73 133

3 633 848

3 364 385

2016

2015

14. INVESTMENT REVENUE

Investment Interest at the beginning of year

10 129

-

Net interest income received per Income Statement

399 537

82 895

Accrued net interest income at the end of year

(53 695)

10 129

Investment Income

355 971

93 024

* The NIHSS was established on 5 December 2013.
The financial period is over a 16 month period from 5 December 2013 to 31 March 2015.
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15. NET CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
2016
(Deficit) / Surplus for the year

2015*

7 080 011

16 429 393

Depreciation and amortisation

692 350

40 027

(Decrease) / Increase in operating lease liability

(29 787)

129 960

(44 485)

(4 262)

(Increase) in receivables from exchange transactions and prepayments

(1 146 835)

(10 129)

Decrease / (Increase) in receivables from non-exchange transactions

14 273 446

(55 121 917)

Adjustments for:

Changes in working capital:
(Increase) in inventories

Increase in trade and other payables from exchange transactions
Increase in trade and other payables from non-exchange transactions

767 162

1 015 764

32 358 121

41 013 191

53 949 983

3 492 027

16. COMMITMENTS
Accumulated surplus

23 509 404

for the year ending 31 March 2016

		
The accumulated surplus and future DHET funding will fund the NIHSS operational costs.
Funding from the National Skills funds (NSF) will fund future project commitments.
Operating Lease - As Lessee (expense)
Minimum lease payments due

Office Rental

Equipment Rental

Total

•

within one year

2 491 552

37 278

2 528 830

•

in second to fifth year (inclusive)

4 368 338

68 343

4 436 681

The NIHSS have occupied a new office space from 1 November 2015.  This premise is an operating lease over a 3 year period.
The NIHSS have entered into an operating lease agreement for equipment over a 3 year period.
Project Commitments
All Projects and African Pathway scholarships are funded by the National Skills Fund (NSF)
The contract period range from 1 to 3 years for all projects.

* The NIHSS was established on 5 December 2013.
The financial period is over a 16 month period from 5 December 2013 to 31 March 2015.
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Projects

Institution / Entity

Programme

University of the
Witwatersrand

Catalytic Projects CRP 01508

University of the KwaZuluNatal

Catalytic Projects CRP 01501

University of the Western
Cape

Catalytic Projects CRP 01506

University of the
Witwatersrand

Catalytic Projects CRP 01509

University of Cape Town

Catalytic Projects CRP 01503

University of the
Witwatersrand

Catalytic Projects CRP 01510

University of Limpopo

Catalytic Projects CRP 01511

University of the Western
Cape

Catalytic Projects CRP 01502

Chris Hani Institute

Catalytic Projects CRP 01507

University of the
Witwatersrand

Catalytic Projects CRP 01505

Rhodes University

Catalytic Projects CRP 01504

Contractual
value at
31 March
2015

New
Contracts
for year
ending 31
March 2016

Expenditure
for the year
ending 31
March 2016

Contractual
value at
31 March
2016

950 000

712 500

237 500

550 000

412 500

137 500

1 280 000

960 000

320 000

835 992

626 994

208 998

999 224

749 418

249 806

680 000

510 000

170 000

780 000

390 000

390 000

992 000

744 000

248 000

891 000

668 250

222 750

524 680

393 510

131 170

1 547 000

1 160 250

386 750

Stellenbosch University

Catalytic Projects CRP 01513

100 000

100 000

-

University of Johannesburg

Catalytic Projects CRP 01514

100 000

100 000

-

Walter Sisulu University

Catalytic Projects CRP 01512

100 000

100 000

-

The Liliesleaf Trust

Humanities Hubs NIHSS-LF
001

1 000 000

900 000

100 000

ICSSR

BRICS Collaboration

6 232 003

2 680 450

3 551 553

University of Johannesburg

Working Groups
WG2015001

300 000

300 000

-

Mapungubwe Institute

Working Groups
WG2015002

250 000

150 000

100 000

University of Johannesburg

Working Groups
WG2015003

24 000

24 000

-

University of Western Cape

Working Groups
WG2015004

179 500

179 500

-

University of the
Witwatersrand

Working Groups
WG2015005

100 000

100 000

-

University of the
Witwatersrand

Working GroupsWG2015006

100 000

100 000

-

South African History Online

Working Groups
WG2015007

150 000

67 000

83 000

University of Cape Town

BRICS Collaboration
BRICS201501

800 000

480 000

320 000
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Projects
Contractual
value at
31 March
2015

New
Contracts
for year
ending 31
March 2016

Expenditure
for the year
ending 31
March 2016

Contractual
value at
31 March
2016

Institution / Entity

Programme

Stellenbosch University

Emeriti Professors
NMP2015014

300 000

100 000

200 000

University of the
Witwatersrand

Emeriti Professors
NMP2015007

300 000

100 000

200 000

University of Limpopo/Venda Emeriti Professors
NMP2015002

300 000

100 000

200 000

University of Fort Hare

Emeriti Professors
NMP2015003

300 000

100 000

200 000

University of South Africa

Emeriti Professors
NMP2015009

300 000

100 000

200 000

University of the KwaZuluNatal

Emeriti Professors
NMP2015006

300 000

100 000

200 000

University of Pretoria

Emeriti Professors
NMP2015005

300 000

100 000

200 000

Rhodes University

Emeriti Professors
NMP2015012

300 000

100 000

200 000

Rhodes University

Emeriti Professors
NMP2015013

300 000

100 000

200 000

North West University

Emeriti Professors
NMP2015004

300 000

100 000

200 000

University of the Western
Cape

Emeriti Professors
NMP2015001

300 000

100 000

200 000

University of Zululand

Emeriti Professors
NMP2015011

300 000

100 000

200 000

University of South Africa

Emeriti Professors
NMP2015010

300 000

100 000

200 000

Nelson Mandela Metro
University

Emeriti Professors
NMP2015008

300 000

100 000

200 000

University of the
Witwatersrand

Catalytic Programme
CRP015015

480 000

240 000

240 000

University of Cape Town

Catalytic Programme
CRP015016

450 000

225 000

225 000

NSF project operational
expenses ^
TOTAL

7 758 464
17 561 899

7 033 500

22 231 836

10 122 027

^ these are operational expenses incurred to support the NSF projects that do not fall under a contract.

Scholarships (African Pathways)
African Pathways Programme

Contractual
value at
31 March 2015

New
Contracts for
year ending
31 March 2016

-

8 820 000
295

295

-

-

8 820 295

7 812 295

1 008 000

African Pathways operational expenses #
TOTAL

Expenditure
for the year
ending 31
March 2016
7 812 000

Contractual
value at
31 March 2016
1 008 000

# these are operational expenses incurred to support the African Pathway Programme.
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17. RELATED PARTIES
Relationship
Controlling entity:

Department of Higher Education
and Training (DHET)

Entities under common control:

None

Members of key management :

Ms. Sarah Mosoetsa

CEO

Mr. Kibiti Lephoto

CFO - resigned January 2016

Prof. Godfrey Netswera

Director (Academic)

Dr. Nthabiseng Motsemme

Director (Academic)

Ms. Yolanda Davids

Director (Administration)

Members of the Board:

Prof. Aristides Sitas (Chairperson)
Prof. Ahmed Bawa
Dr. Vukile Khumalo
Dr. Pamela Maseko
Dr. Bernard Nthambeleni
Prof. Nhlanhla Mkhize
Prof. Sam Moyo (to November 2015)
Prof. Fiona Tregenna
Mr. Alex Mashilo
Ms. Luli Callinicos
Mr. Ivor Baatjes
Prof. Rosemary Moeketsi
Dr. John Pampallis
Mr. Stephen Smith

Annual Report 2015 / 2016

91

2016

2015*

Related party balances
Receivables
Department of Higher Education and Training (DHET)

40 848 471

55 121 917

Payables
Department of Higher Education and Training (DHET)

73 371 312

41 013 191

82 936 339

20 948 563

4 879 142

1 303 182

13 160
4 743
6 925
10 483
2 550
6 925
5 000
7 925
2 500
6 050
66 261

20 000
10 000
12 665
10 000
7 500
5 000
10 000
5 000
12 500
14 500
107 165

DHET incurred accounting costs (R 2 786 841) on behalf of the NIHSS for the 2015/2016
financial year (2014/2015 R 831 077).
All related party balances and transactions to DHET include the transfer to/from the
National Skills Fund.
Related party transactions
Transactions
Revenue
Department of Higher Education and Training (DHET)
Remuneration - Members of key management
Aggregate remuneration (5 persons)
The senior management group consists of NIHSS' CEO, CFO (resigned January 2016), and
Directors. The aggregate remuneration of members of the senior management group and
the number of managers receiving remuneration within this category are disclosed above.
Remuneration - Board Members
Prof. Aristides Sitas
Prof. Ahmed Bawa
Dr. Vukile Khumalo
Dr. Pamela Maseko
Dr. Bernard Nthambeleni
Prof. Nhlanhla Mkhize
Prof. Sam Moyo (to November 2015)
Prof. Fiona Tregenna
Mr. Alex Mashilo
Ms. Luli Callinicos
Mr. Ivor Baatjes
Prof. Rosemary Moeketsi
Dr. John Pampallis
Mr. Stephen Smith
TOTAL
The Board consists of members appointed in terms of the Government Gazette 37118.
Remuneration is paid to members.
NIHSS has remunerated members of the Board for attending board and sub-committee
meetings as disclosed above.
* The NIHSS was established on 5 December 2013.
The financial period is over a 16 month period from 5 December 2013 to 31 March 2015.
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2016

2015

Transactions made to organisations associated with Board Members **
Entities associated with Board Members

Associating Board Members

University of Cape Town

Prof. Aristides Sitas

Robben Island Museum Council

Ms Luli Callinicos

-

Mapungubwe Institute for Strategic

Ms Luli Callinicos

150 000

Prof. Rosemary Moeketsi, Dr. Bernard N

532 000

3 783 558

Reflection
University of South Africa

Nthambeleni, Prof. Ahmed C Bawa
University of Johannesburg

Prof. Fiona Tregenna

National Research Foundation

Dr. Bernard N Nthambeleni

University of KwaZulu Natal

Dr. Vukile Khumalo, Prof. Nhlanhla Mkhize

University of Nelson Mandela Metropolitan

Mr. Ivor Baatjes

306 000

Chris Hani Institute

Mr. Alex Mashilo

222 750

Rhodes University

Dr. Pamela Maseko

Durban University of Technology

Prof. Ahmed Bawa

-

Department of Higher Education

Mr. John Pampallis

-

University of the Witwatersrand

Ms. Sarah Mosoetsa (CEO)

TOTAL

801 000
2 848 750

1 968 504

5 657 666
16 270 228

** These transactions are between the NIHSS and the Entities that are associated with Board members/CEO, and none of these particular ones were
paid directly to the board member/CEO
All transactions above occurred under terms that were no more favourable than those available in similar arm's length dealings.

18. RISK MANAGEMENT
The focus of risk management in the NIHSS is on identifying, assessing, managing and monitoring all known forms of risk
across the NIHSS. While operating risk cannot be fully eliminated, management endeavours to minimise it by ensuring that the
appropriate infrastructure, controls, systems and ethics are applied throughout the NIHSS and managed within predetermined
procedures and constraints.
As the NIHSS acquires finance from DHET and does not have borrowed funds, it does not have major exposure to credit, liquidity,
interest and market risk.
Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the NIHSS will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall due.  Ultimate responsibility
for liquidity risk management rests with the DHET, which has built an appropriate liquidity risk management framework for the
management of the NIHSS' short, medium and long term funding and liquidity management requirements.
* The NIHSS was established on 5 December 2013.
The financial period is over a 16 month period from 5 December 2013 to 31 March 2015.
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2015/16
Payables from exchange transactions
2014/15
Payables from exchange transactions

6 months or less

6-12 months

1 782 925
6 months or less

1-2 years
-

6-12 months

1 015 764

1-2 years

-

-

Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will cause a financial loss for the other party by failing to meet an
obligation.
Credit risk arises from cash and cash equivalents, and deposits with banks and financial institutions, as well as outstanding
receivables and committed transactions. For banks and financial institutions, only highly reputable financial institutions are
used.
2015/16

Gross

Impairment

2016: Total

The ageing of receivables from exchange transactions:
Not past due

697 942

-

697 942

51 318 392

-

51 318 392

The ageing of cash and cash equivalents
Not past due
2014/15

Gross

Impairment

2015: Total

The ageing of receivables from exchange transactions:
Not past due

10 129

-

10 129

3 174 929

-

3 174 929

The ageing of cash and cash equivalents:
Not past due
Market risk
No significant events occurred during the year in the market that NIHSS is aware of.
Interest rate risk
The NIHSS has limited exposure to interest rate risk.  NIHSS' cash and cash equivalents are subject to interest rate risk for the
portion of interest received. The interest rate risk is limited as funds are invested with one of the four major banks and this is
assessed annually.
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19. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING DATE
During the course of the 2016/2017 financial year, DHET will assess the remaining 2015/2016 funding allocation in accordance
with the 2015/2016 NIHSS Business plan. This assessment will determine if the remaining receivable from non-exchange
transactions (Note 7) will remain.

20. BUDGET DIFFERENCES
Notes to Statement of Comparison of Budget and Actual Amounts
Item

Reason

Investment revenue

Interest was not budgeted for in the financial year.

Government Funding

The full allocation of funding for both operations and projects was not awarded in the
financial year.
The NSF additional funding for BRICS ThinkTank (R7.6m) was not received in the
financial year.

Employee related costs

Delay in the recruitment of staff during the financial year.  Expect growth in the
2016/17 financial year.

Depreciation and amortisation

Depreciation and amortisation was not budgeted for in the financial year.

Rent and Utilities

Rent for the financial year is in line with budget

Project expenses

The full allocation of funding for both operations and projects was not awarded in the
financial year.
The project expenditure is therefore limited to the available funding to spend on
projects.
The NSF additional funding for BRICS ThinkTank (R7.6m) was not received in the
financial year.

General expenses
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21. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS DISCLOSURE
Categories of financial instruments
At amortised

2015/16

cost

Total

Financial assets
Receivables from exchange transactions
Receivables from non-exchange transactions

697 942

697 942

40 848 471

40 848 471

Cash and cash equivalents

51 318 392

51 318 392

Total

92 864 805

92 864 805

Trade and other payables from exchange transactions

1 782 925

1 782 925

Total

1 782 925

1 782 925

Financial liabilities

At amortised

2014/15

cost

Total

Financial assets
Receivables from exchange transactions

10 129

10 129

55 121 917

55 121 917

3 174 929

3 174 929

58 306 975

58 306 975

Trade and other payables from exchange transactions

1 015 764

1 015 764

Total

1 015 764

1 015 764

Receivables from non-exchange transactions
Cash and cash equivalents
Total
Financial liabilities

22. CONTINGENCIES
There are no contingencies for the 2015/2016 financial year in addition to the commitments disclosed above (Note 16).

23. FRUITLESS AND WASTEFUL EXPENDITURE
To the best of our knowledge no fruitless and wasteful expenditure have been incurred during the 2015/2016 financial year.

24. IRREGULAR EXPENDITURE
To the best of our knowledge no irregular expenditure have been incurred during the 2015/2016 financial year
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25. GOING CONCERN
There are no known instances that cast doubt on the NIHSS' ability to continue as a going concern.

26. SIGNIFICANT JUDGEMENTS AND SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY
Estimation of useful lives and Residual value
Management are of the opinion that all assets of the NIHSS have a useful life that is equal to the economic life as assets are used
to a point where they cannot be sold at an open market. Management therefore considers the residual value to not be material
and significant.
Impairment of assets
Management are of the opinion that there is no objective evidence that individually or in a group that the receivables will not be
recoverable.
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